
  
www.region2planning.com/jackson-county-planning-commission 

 

Jackson County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 
 

MEETING NOTICE 

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Grant E. Bauman 
R2PC Principal Planner 
(517) 768-6711 
gbauman@co.jackson.mi.us 

DATE: June 13, 2019 

TIME: 6:00 p.m. 

PLACE: 5th Floor Commission Chambers 
 Jackson County Tower Building 
 120 W. Michigan Avenue 
 Jackson, Michigan 49201 

MEETING AGENDA 
 

1. Call to order and pledge of allegiance 

2. Public comment [3 MINUTE LIMIT] 

3. Approval of minutes 

Approval of the May 9, 2019, meeting minutes [ACTION] ........................................................................  3 

4. Approval of agenda 

Approval of the June 13, 2019, meeting agenda [ACTION] 

5. Request(s) for review, comment, and recommendation 

a. Consideration of township zoning amendment(s) 

(1) Parma Township [ACTION]  ...........................................................................................................  7 

(2) Summit Township [ACTION]  .......................................................................................................  19 

(3) Hanover Township [ACTION]  .....................................................................................................  43 

(4) Blackman Township [ACTION]  ....................................................................................................  59 

(5) Concord Township [ACTION]  ......................................................................................................  75 

(6) Leoni Township [ACTION]  ..........................................................................................................  91 

(7) Leoni Township [ACTION]  ........................................................................................................  107 

(8) Leoni Township [ACTION]  ........................................................................................................  117 

(9) Leoni Township [ACTION]  ........................................................................................................  127 

b. Consideration of master plan(s) – None 

c. Farmland and Open Space Preservation Program (PA 116) application(s) – None 

 

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 1 

mailto:gbauman@co.jackson.mi.us


 
 

6. Other business 

a. Unfinished business 

(1) Jackson County Master Plan [DISCUSSION] 

b. New business – None 

7. Public comment [2 MINUTE LIMIT] 

8. Commissioner comment 

9. Adjournment 

 

 

The next meeting of the Jackson County Planning Commission is scheduled for July 11, 2019 

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 2 



 

Jackson County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 
 

MEETING MINUTES 
May 9, 2019 

Jackson County Tower Building ● Jackson, Michigan 

Members Present: Roger Gaede, Environment; Amy Guerriero, Industry and Economics; Nancy 
Hawley, At Large; Ted Hilleary, Education; Russ Jennings, At Large; Jennifer Mor-
ris, At Large; and Jim Videto, Agriculture 

 Members Absent: Timothy Burns, At Large, and Corey Kennedy, Jackson County Board of Commis-
sioners 

 Liaisons Present: Grant Bauman, Principal Planner 

 Others Present: Mathew Baker; Peggy Beals; Ted Beals, Waterloo Township Planning Commis-
sion; Stephen Galgan, Joffe Law, PLLC; and William Sutherland, Norvell Town-
ship Planning Commission 

Item 1. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance. The meeting was called to order at 6:00 p.m. by 
Chair Guerriero. Those in attendance rose and joined in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Item 2. Public Comment. There was no public comment. 

Item 3. Approval of Minutes. A motion was made by Comm. Videto, and seconded by Comm. 
Morris, to approve the minutes of the April 11, 2019, meeting as presented. The motion was 
approved unanimously. 

Item 4. Approval of the Agenda. A motion was made by Comm. Morris, and seconded by Comm. 
Hawley, to approve the May 9, 2019, meeting agenda as presented. The motion was ap-
proved unanimously. 

Item 5. Request(s) for Review, Comment, and Recommendation. 

a. Consideration of Township Zoning Amendment(s). 

(1) CZ #19-05 – Parma Township 

Staff summarized his report on the proposed amendments to the Parma Township 
Zoning Ordinance regarding ‘Recreational Marihuana Establishments’. County Plan-
ning Commissioners were advised to recommend approval with comments of the 
proposed amendments (please see the staff report). 

Comm. Morris suggested that the Township should hold off on the licensing role un-
til the State has established its emergency rules in June. 

A motion was made by Comm. Morris, and seconded by Comm. Jennings, to recom-
mend approval with comments of the text amendments to the Parma Township 
Board (please see the staff report and these minutes). The motion was approved by 
majority vote with Comm. Gaede voting no. 

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 3 



5/9/19 JCPC Minutes | Page 2 
 

(2) CZ #19-06 – Waterloo Township 

Staff summarized its report on the proposed amendments to the Waterloo Town-
ship Zoning Ordinance regarding ‘Solar Energy Systems’ and ‘Wind Energy Systems’. 
County Planning Commissioners were advised to recommend approval with com-
ments of the proposed amendments (please see the staff report). 

Ted Beals, Waterloo Township Planning Commission, spoke in favor of the proposed 
amendments. He explained that there has been interest in the Stockbridge Area re-
garding solar and wind energy and that the Township does not currently address 
those uses in its Zoning Ordinance. The Township Planning Commission looked at a 
variety of ordinances to come up with its version, input was solicited from the farm 
community, and the Commission sees the uses as an economic advantage to farm-
ers. Mr. Beals also stated that the Planning Commission would make the corrections 
suggested by JCPC staff prior to submitting the proposed amendments to the Wa-
terloo Township Board. However, he does not feel that wind energy is being ex-
cluded, as referenced to in the staff report, only its commercial aspect. Comm. 
Gaede stated that he was encouraged by the receptiveness of Mr. Beals to the sug-
gestions of JCPC staff. 

A motion was made by Comm. Morris, and seconded by Comm. Hawley, to recom-
mend approval with comments of the text amendments to the Waterloo Township 
Board (please see the staff report). The motion was approved unanimously. 

(3) CZ #19-07 – Leoni Township 

Staff summarized his report regarding the proposed rezoning of the subject prop-
erty—known as Parcel ID# 000-14-12-226-001-03 and located in Section 12 (T3S-
R1E) of the Township—from Agricultural (AG-1)’ to ‘Heavy Industrial (M)’, noting 
that the JCPC has recommended disapproval of the rezoning of other adjacent and 
nearby parcels to ‘M’ (please see the staff report). County Planning Commissioners 
were advised to recommend disapproval of the rezoning request. 

Stephen Galgan, attorney for the applicant, spoke in favor of the rezoning, noting 
that recent and pending rezonings negate the recommendation of the Master Plan 
which is more than 5 years old. He concluded by stating that the proposed rezoning 
will allow for the highest and best use of the property and that sewer service is 
available. Mathew Baker, the applicant, spoke in favor of the rezoning, stating that 
the Township-owned property directly to the south is zoned ‘M’ and that not all ‘M’ 
zoned parcels are served by public water. He just wants to secure for his property 
what the Township has already done for its property in the area. In response to the 
staff report indicating the public hearing for the rezoning was inaccurately noticed 
for date and type of meeting, Mr. Baker stated that the people in attendance at the 
Leoni Township Zoning Board of Appeals were told that the hearing would be held 
before the Planning Commission in 2 days. Comm. Gaede stated his concern regard-
ing the effect of the rezoning on the adjacent residentially zoned land in Grass Lake 
Township. 

 

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 4 



5/9/19 JCPC Minutes | Page 3 
 

A motion was made by Comm. Gaede, and seconded by Comm. Hawley, to recom-
mend disapproval with comments of the rezoning to the Leoni Township Board 
(please see the staff report and these minutes). The motion was approved unani-
mously. 

b. Consideration of Master Plan(s). 

(1) CZ #19-04 – Waterloo Township 

Staff summarized its report on the proposed amendments to the Waterloo Town-
ship Master Plan (please see the staff report). County Planning Commissioners were 
advised to state that in the opinion of the Commission, the proposed master plan 
amendments regarding wind and solar energy systems are consistent with the Jack-
son Community Master Plan, and that the procedures for amending a municipal 
master plan stated in the Michigan Planning Enabling Act must be followed. 

Ted Beals, Waterloo Township Planning Commission, spoke in favor of the proposed 
amendments. He stated that the Township sees wind and solar energy systems as a 
way of supporting farming rather than as innovative planning and zoning. Mr. Beals 
also stated that the amendment process mandated in the Michigan Planning Ena-
bling Act is being followed, with the exception of the initial notice of intent. 

A motion was made by Comm. Hawley, and seconded by Comm. Hilleary, to state 
that the proposed amendments to the Waterloo Township Master Plan are con-
sistent with the Jackson Community Master Plan and to relay the staff comments 
regarding noticing. The motion was approved unanimously. 

c. Farmland & Open Space Preservation Program (PA 116) application(s). None. 

Item 6. Other Business. 

a. Unfinished Business. 

(1) Jackson County Master Plan. Staff summarized the first full draft of Chapter 2 
(Community Description and Issue Identification) of the Jackson County Master Plan 
and associated mapping (including the water trails paragraph handed out at the 
meeting). Staff requested that Commissioners provide him with comments. The 
draft will also be sent to pertinent officials for their review and comment. He also 
stated that he would like to have a discussion about the creation of the entire docu-
ment at the next meeting. For example, given that Jackson County has no direct 
zoning authority and that municipalities develop their own future land use maps, is 
there a need to create a countywide future land use map? He also suggested solicit-
ing comments from municipal officials regarding their needs and concerns. 

b. New Business. None. 

Item 7. Public Comment. Ted Beals stated his concern regarding the creation of a countywide fu-
ture land use map and that he liked the idea of dispensing with that resource. 

Item 8. Commissioner Comment. Comm. Gaede voiced his concern regarding reliable elevator 
access for the JCPC meeting. Comm. Hawley announced Jackson County’s Museum Day 
scheduled for May 11th. Comm. Morris announced Downtown Jackson’s Artwalk event 
scheduled for the evening of May 10th. Comm. Gaede announced the plant sale at Hidden 

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 5 



5/9/19 JCPC Minutes | Page 4 
 

Lake Gardens scheduled for May 11th. 

Item 9. Adjournment. The meeting was adjourned by Chair Guerriero at 7:30 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted by:  
Grant Bauman, Recording Secretary 

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 6 



  
www.region2planning.com/jackson-county-planning-commission/ 

 

Jackson County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 
 

COORDINATED ZONING REPORT | #19-08 

 To: County Planning Commissioners 
 From: Grant E. Bauman 
 Date: June 13, 2019 

 Proposal: The rezoning of a property in Parma Township 

Request 

A property is proposed for rezoning to ‘Industrial (I-1)’ from ‘Highway Service Commercial (C-2)’. 

Purpose 

The purpose of the request is for a ‘slaughterhouse’ (see the ‘Rezoning Worksheet Form’).* 

Location and Size of the Property 

The subject property (ID# 000-06-34-201-002-02) is situated in Section 34 (T3S-R3W) of the Township 
(see Figure 1). It is located in the southeast corner of the Concord Road I-94 interchange and has an area 
of approximately 26 acres. 

Land Use and Zoning 

Current Land Use – The subject property is currently used for commercial-agricultural product storage 
(see the ‘Rezoning Worksheet Form’). 

Future Land Use – The Parma Township Master Plan places the subject property in the southeastern 
corner of and area recommended for ‘Highway Service Commercial’ uses (see Figure 2). ‘Agricultural’ 
uses are recommended for the adjacent area to the south and east. 

Current Zoning – The subject property is zoned ‘Highway Service Commercial (C-2)’, as are properties 
to the east and northwest (see Figure 3). ‘General Commercial (C-1)’ properties are located on the west 
side of Concord Road and ‘Agricultural (AG-1) properties are located to the south. 

Public Facilities and Environmental Constraints 

Water and Sewer Availability – Municipal water and sanitary sewer services are not available and 
there are no plans to extend them (see the Rezoning Worksheet Form). 

Public Road/Street Access – Concord Road, a paved county primary road south of the I-94 inter-
change, provides direct access to the subject parcel. 

  

                                                 
* Please note that the proposed use is listed for informational purposes only. It should not be utilized in making the rezoning 
decision. Circumstances may change tomorrow which make the proposed use impractical. All of the uses that the proposed 
zoning designation would allow are pertinent to the rezoning request. 

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 7 



CZ #19-08 Page 2 
 

Environmental Constraints – There are wetlands on the subject property, according to the natural 
wetlands inventory (NWI). A creek also flows close to the parcel’s southern boundary. 

Analysis and Recommendation 

Township Planning Commission Recommendation – The Parma Township Planning Commission passed 
a motion to deny the proposed rezoning to ‘I-1’ during its May 8, 2019 meeting (see the Zoning Amend-
ment Form and meeting minutes). 

JCPC Staff Analysis – Parma Township’s Zoning Plan contains the following criteria upon which a rezon-
ing request must be considered: 

1. Is the proposed rezoning consistent with the policies and uses proposed for that area in the 
Master Plan? 

No. ‘Industrial’ uses are not planned for the general area. Parma Township’s Future Land Use 
Plan recommends ‘Highway Commercial’ uses for the subject property as well as properties to 
the north and west (see Figure 2). ‘Agricultural’ uses are recommended for the property to the 
east and south. The Township’s Zoning Plan equates the ‘Highway Commercial’ future land use 
category with the ‘Highway Service (C-2)’ zoning district. 

2. Will all of the uses allowed under the proposed rezoning be compatible with other zones and 
uses in the surrounding area? 

No. Not all of the uses allowed in the ‘Light Industrial (I-1)’ district are compatible with the uses 
allowed in the surrounding districts (i.e., junkyards). 

3. Will public services and facilities be significantly adversely impacted by a development or use 
allowed under the requested rezoning? 

No. Concord Road is a paved county primary south of the interchange with I-94. Water and 
sewer services are not provided. 

4. Will the uses allowed under the proposed rezoning be equally or better suited to the area 
than uses allowed under the current zoning district? 

No. ‘General Commercial (C-1) zoning is located to the north and west. ‘Highway Commercial (C-
2) zoning is located to the east and northwest. ‘Agricultural (AG-1) zoning is located to the 
northeast. 

JCPC Staff Advisement – The proposed rezoning does not conform 
to the Parma Township Master Plan. No other ‘Light Industrial (I-1)’ 
zoning is located is adjacent to the subject property. Consequently, 
the rezoning would create a ‘spot zone’. 

Based upon this analysis, staff advises the Jackson County Planning 
Commission to recommend DISAPPROVAL of the ‘Light Industrial (I-
1)’ rezoning request to the Parma Township Board. 

Staff Report Attachments: 

 Background information provided by Parma Township 

  

Suggested Actions: 

(1) Recommend APPROVAL 
(2) Recommend DISAPPROVAL 
(3) Recommend APPROVAL 

WITH COMMENTS 
(4) Take NO ACTION 

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 8 



CZ #19-08 Page 3 
 

Figure 1 

Location 

 

Figure 2 

Municipal Future Land Use 

 

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 9 



CZ #19-08 Page 4 
 

Figure 3 

Municipal Zoning 

 

Figure 4a 

Aerial Photo 

 

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 10 



CZ #19-08 Page 5 
 

Figure 4b 

Aerial Photo 

 

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 11 



JCPC Case #:
(For JCPC Use Only)

JACKSON COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION
(COORDINATING ZONING)

Return to: Jackson County Planning Commission •c/o Region 2 Planning Commission •120 W. Michigan Avenue * Jackson,Michigan 49201

Please submit the Planning Commission meeting minutes and any reports/exhibits the Commission used to makes its recommendation with this form. Use
a separate formfor each proposed zoning change. Please include a legal description/ survey with rezoning requests in addition to the Parcel ID Number.

A copy of this form with the JCPC recommendation will be mailed back to the Clerk, who will return o copy to the JCPC with the Township Board Action.

THE Ph^rnoG
County Planning Commission for its review, comment, and recommendation:

(ANSWER EITHER A or 8)

IA. DISTRICT BOUNDARY CHANGE (REZONING):
(Provide the legal and popular property descriptions, the Parcel ID Number(s), the number of acres, and the section(s) in which the
property is located. Attach additional sheets if more space is needed. Attach a map showing all changes and additions.)

<0 <Q <z> - £? £ —3 /

1 TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION submits the following proposed zoning change to the Jackson

(

\

0O 2,- O "2-i

J

1. The above described property has a proposed zoning change FROM
X - /

V

ZONE TO
2. PURPOSE OF PROPOSED CHANGE: 5 t-JUq0 Z,

ZONE.

\

8. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT:
The following Article(s) and Section(s) is amended or altered: ARTICLE
The NEW SECTION reads as follows: (Attach additional sheets if more space is needed.)

SECTION

AJ t ?r rdayC PUBLIC HEARING on the above amendment was held on: month

D. NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING was pubiished/mailed on the following date: month

(Notice must be provided at least fifteen days prior to the public hearing.)

E. THE NEWSPAPER (having general circulation in Township) carrying the NOTICE:

year
day X /Y / 9year

The PROPOSED ZONING AMENDMENT described herein was duly considered by the Township Planning Commission and will be
forwarded to the Township 8o^d with a recommendation to ( ) APPROVE or ( X ) DISAPPROVE.

^ /d/s/ tf (enter date),Recording Secretary

JAC&SON COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION (JCPC) ACTION:
1. Date of Meeting: month
2. The JCPC herewith certifies receipt of the proposed amendment on the above date and;

( ) Recommends APPROVAL of the zoning change

( ) Recommends DISAPPROVAL of the zoning change for the reasons stated in the attached letter.
( ) Recommends APPROVAL of the zoning change with comments, as stated in the attached letter.
( ) Takes NO ACTION.

day year

(enter date)( ) Chair or ( ) Secretary

TOWNSHIP BOARD ACTION:
1, Date of Meeting: month day year

Township Board herewith certifies that a legally constituted meeting held on the above date and that
the proposed amendment ( ) PASSED, ( ) DID NOT PASS, or was ( ) REFERRED ANEW to the Township Planning Commission.

2. The

Township Clerk
6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 12 

gbauman
Typewriter
19    08



6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 13 

gbauman
Typewriter
19    08



6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 14 



6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 15 



6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 16 



6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 17 



6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 18 



  
www.region2planning.com/jackson-county-planning-commission/ 

 

Jackson County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 
 

COORDINATED ZONING REPORT | #19-09 

 To: County Planning Commissioners 
 From: Grant E. Bauman 
 Date: June 13, 2019 

 Proposal: The rezoning of a property in Summit Township 

Request 

A property is proposed for rezoning to ‘Suburban Residential (RS-2)’ from ‘Agricultural (AG-1)’. 

Purpose 

The purpose of the request is to create 5 single-family lots (see the ‘Zoning Amendment Form’).* 

Location and Size of the Property 

The subject property (ID# 000-13-20-176-005-07) is situated in Section 20 (T3S-R1W) of the Township 
(see Figure 1). It is located on the south side of Ridgeway Road, near the Falling Waters Trail, and has an 
area of approximately 26 acres. 

Land Use and Zoning 

Current Land Use – The subject property is currently vacant, as are the parcels to the north and south 
(see the ‘Zoning Amendment Form’). The properties to the east and west are used residentially, alt-
hough a portion of the parcel to the west is vacant. 

Future Land Use – The Summit Township Master Plan places the subject property in an area recom-
mended for ‘Low Density Residential’ uses, as are all of the surrounding parcels (see Figure 2). ‘Parks 
and Recreation’ uses are recommended for the nearby Falling Waters Trail right-of-way. 

Current Zoning – The subject property is zoned ‘Agricultural (AG)’, as are parcels immediately to the 
east, south, and west (see Figure 3). Properties directly to the north and further to the east and south 
are zoned ‘Suburban Residential (RS-2)’. 

Public Facilities and Environmental Constraints 

Water and Sewer Availability – Municipal water and sewer services are provided to the subject prop-
erty (see the Rezoning Worksheet Form). 

Public Road/Street Access – Ridgeway Road, a paved county local provides direct access to the sub-
ject parcel. 

                                                 
* Please note that the proposed use is listed for informational purposes only. It should not be utilized in making the rezoning 
decision. Circumstances may change tomorrow which make the proposed use impractical. All of the uses that the proposed 
zoning designation would allow are pertinent to the rezoning request. 

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 19 



CZ #19-09 Page 2 
 

Environmental Constraints – The subject property has no known environmental constraints, accord-
ing to the Township (see the Rezoning Worksheet Form). 

Analysis and Recommendation 

Township Planning Commission Recommendation –The Summit Township Planning Commission passed 
a motion to approve the proposed rezoning to ‘RS-2’ during its May 21, 2019 meeting (see the meeting 
minutes). 

JCPC Staff Analysis – Summit Township’s Zoning Plan contains the following criteria upon which a rezon-
ing request must be considered: 

1. Is the proposed rezoning consistent with the policies and uses proposed for that area in the 
Master Plan? 

No. Summit Township’s Future Land Use Plan recommends ‘Low Density Residential’ uses for 
the subject property and the surrounding parcels (see Figure 2). The Township’s Zoning Plan 
equates the ‘Low Density Residential’ future land use category with the ‘Agricultural (AG-1)’, 
‘Rural Non-Farm (RNF-1)’, and ‘Suburban Residential (RS-1)’ zoning districts. The ‘Suburban Resi-
dential (RS-2)’ zoning district is equated to ‘High Density Residential’ uses. 

2. Will all of the uses allowed under the proposed rezoning be compatible with other zones and 
uses in the surrounding area? 

Yes. ‘Suburban Residential (RS-2)’ zoned parcels located on the north side of Ridgeway Road are 
adjacent to the subject property. They are also located further to the east and south. 

3. Will public services and facilities be significantly adversely impacted by a development or use 
allowed under the requested rezoning? 

No. Further residential development should not adversely impact public services and facilities. 

4. Will the uses allowed under the proposed rezoning be equally or better suited to the area 
than uses allowed under the current zoning district? 

Yes. Other residential subdivisions are located in the surrounding area. 

JCPC Staff Advisement – The proposed rezoning does not conform to the Summit Township Master Plan 
because the proposed ‘Suburban Residential (RS-2)’ district equates to ‘High Density Residential’ uses, 
rather than to ‘Low Density Residential’ uses, according to the Township’s Zoning Plan. However, the 
existing subdivisions located in the surrounding area are also zoned ‘RS-2’. Accordingly, it is suggested 
that the Township consider amending its master plan to place this part of the Township in an area rec-
ommended for ‘High Density Residential’ uses. 

Based upon this analysis, staff advises the Jackson County Planning Commission to recommend AP-
PROVAL WITH COMMENTS of the Suburban Residential (RS-2)’ rezoning request to the Summit Town-
ship Board. 

 The Township should consider amending its master plan to 
place this part of the Township in an area recommended 
for ‘High Density Residential’ uses. 

Staff Report Attachments: 

 Background information provided by Summit Township 

Suggested Actions: 

(1) Recommend APPROVAL 
(2) Recommend DISAPPROVAL 
(3) Recommend APPROVAL 

WITH COMMENTS 
(4) Take NO ACTION 

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 20 



CZ #19-09 Page 3 
 

Figure 1 

Location 

 

Figure 2 

Municipal Future Land Use 

 

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 21 



CZ #19-09 Page 4 
 

Figure 3 

Municipal Zoning 

 

Figure 4a 

Aerial Photo 

 

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 22 



CZ #19-09 Page 5 
 

Figure 4b 

Aerial Photo 

 

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 23 



6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 24 

gbauman
Typewriter
19     09



JCPC Case #: _____-_____ 
(For JCPC Use Only) 

REZONING WORKSHEET FORM 

 

 JACKSON COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
(COORDINATING ZONING) 

Return to: Jackson County Planning Commission · c/o Region 2 Planning Commission · 120 W. Michigan Avenue · Jackson, Michigan 49201 

Please submit with the “Zoning Amendment Form” for a district boundary change (rezoning), not a text amendment. 

 

Township of:  ______________________________________  Township Case #:  _________________________________________  

Township official we may contact:  _______________________________________________  Phone #: ( _____ ) _____ - __________ 

Applicant: ____________________________________________________________________  Phone #: ( _____ ) _____ - __________ 

Rezoning Request: From: ______________________________ ( ______ ) To: ______________________________ ( ______ ) 

Property Location: Section(s): ____________________ Quarter Section(s): � NW � NE � SW � SE 

Legal Description and/or Survey Map/Tax Map (please attach) � Yes � No (Please do not use only the Parcel ID Number) 

Parcel Size (if more than one parcel, label “A” - “Z”):  ________________________________________________________________________  

 ____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

Please attach location map � Yes � No 

What is the existing use of the site?  _________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

 ____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

What is the proposed use of the site?  _______________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

 ____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

What are the surrounding uses (e.g.: agriculture, single-family residential, highway commercial, etc.)? 

North:  ________________________________________________  South:  ________________________________________________  

East: __________________________________________________  West:  ________________________________________________  

What are the surrounding Zoning Districts? 

North:  _______________________________________  ( ______ ) South:  ________________________________________  ( ______) 

East:  ________________________________________  ( ______ ) West:  ________________________________________  ( ______) 

What is the suggested use of the site on the Township’s Land Use Plan map?  ____________________________________________________  

Is municipal water currently available? � Yes � No Will it be made available? � Yes � No If yes, when? _________________  

Is municipal sewer currently available? � Yes � No Will it be made available? � Yes � No If yes, when? _________________  

Does the site have access to a public street or road? � Yes � No If yes, name  ________________________________________  

Are there any known environmental constraints on the site? � Yes � No 

� Wetland(s) � Floodplain(s) � Brownfield(s) � Soil(s) 

� Other (please specify)  _______________________________________________________________________________________________  

 ____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

Please attach the minutes of the Planning Commission. 

� Yes, the minutes are attached. � No, the minutes are not attached. 

Please attach copies of any reports, exhibits or other documented provided to the Planning Commission. 

� Yes, copies of documentation are attached. � No, copies of documentation are not attached. 

Please attach any public comments, letters, or petitions. 

� Yes, public comments are attached. � No, public comments are not attached. 

 

Please include any additional information or comments as an attachment. 
6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 25 

gbauman
Typewriter
19    09



6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 26 



6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 27 



6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 28 



6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 29 



6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 30 



6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 31 



6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 32 



6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 33 



6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 34 



6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 35 



6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 36 



6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 37 



6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 38 



NOTICE 
 
The Summit Township Planning Commission will hold a public hearing May 21, 2019 at 6:00 p.m. in the 
Township Hall, 2121 Ferguson Road. 
 
At this time all interested parties will be heard on the request of Linda S. Hones Applicant to rezone a strip of 
land 600 ft. by 233 ft. in the 2500 block of Ridgeway Rd. from Agricultural (AG-1) to Suburban Residential 
(RS-2) to allow for the development of five (5) residential lots. 
 
The property and request are more particularly described and on display at the Township Offices.  
 
Current Zoning for the property is Agricultural (AG-1) 
 
Summit Township Office is open weekdays from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. during which time the Zoning 
Ordinance/Zoning Map may be examined. Written comments regarding the above may be directed to the 
Township, or by calling (517) 788-4113 Extension 240.  Summit Township will provide any necessary or 
reasonable auxiliary aids at the meeting for persons with disabilities, upon ten – (10) days written notice to 
the Township, 2121 Ferguson Rd., Jackson, MI 49203. 
 
John Worden 
Zoning Administrator 
 
Jackson Citizen Patriot  
Insertion Date:  May 5, 2019 
 
Affidavit requested.  Please call C. Brown at 788-4113 Ext. 221 with cost 
 
Copy to Meghan Dobben, Clerk 

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 39 



Summit Township Planning Commission 
May 21, 2019 

 
 
Members Present: Jack Shelby; Chairman, Robert Kendall, George Gancsos Jr., 
Allan Hooper, Todd Emmons; Board Liaison, Laurie Cunningham; Secretary, John Worden;  
Summit Township Zoning Administrator, Mark Cesarz and Tom Beila arrived late. 
 
Members Absent: None 

 
The Meeting was called to order by Jack Shelby; Chairman, on May 21, 2019 at 6.00 p.m. in  
the Summit Township hall, 2121 Ferguson Rd. 
 
A motion was made by George Gancsos Jr., supported by Robert Kendall, to approve the minutes 
of the October 16, 2018 minutes as presented. The motion carried unanimously. 
 

 
Case  #19-05-0007 Rezoning from AG-1 to RS-2 – 2500 BLK Ridgeway Rd.  
 
Request for rezoning of land on Ridgeway Rd from AG-1 to RS-2, creating five lots  
of 120 x 233 feet for building of new homes.  Applicant Linda and Ed Hones, 8564 N Shore Drive, 
Clark Lake, Peterson Lake Development, present. Linda Hones provided a brief description and 
overview of the proposed project. The public sewer line will be extended to serve the project  
and has suffcient capacity per the Summit DPW. Water mains already serve the area. 
 
A Motion was made by Allan Hooper, supported by George Gancsos Jr. to approve the rezoning  
of the 2500 BLK Ridgeway Rd from Agricultural (AG-1) to Suburban Residential (RS-2). The motion 
carried unanimously. 
 

 
 
Case #19-05-0009 Conditional Use Permit-Dog Day Care –Boarding-Grooming 2299 W Michigan  
 
Request for Conditional Use Permit, Cara Donahue; Playful Paws LLC, Applicant 
and Garner & Channell LLC , owners.  Proposed use at 2299 W Michigan Ave, a Dog Daycare,  
boarding and grooming facility. Cara Donahue provided description and overview. The facility  
will be monitored yearly by Jackson County Animal Control, will have alarm and cameras present 
in and on the grounds. An 8ft. solid fence will be put around the outdoor play area. Hours of  
operation will be Monday – Saturday, 7am to 7pm, no day care on Sundays only overnight  
boarding. Dogs will be let outside every 2 hours during day care hours, overnight boarding  
additional until 8 or 9pm. Average number of dogs expected per day; daycare 35 , boarding 10 and  
grooming 10 .  Donahue explained all dogs will be evaluated before staying in the daycare and  
boarding facility. Denise Donahue, mother and several residents in audience in spoke in favor of 
the proposal.  
Debbie Garner, owner of building explained there are 2 rentals which she owns and  
has spoken to both tenants, they are in favor.   No additional lighting will be needed on the 
property.   

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 40 



Jackson County Animal control will be monitoring the facility and will require to be licensed.   
The maximum dogs for day care and boarding at one time will be 50 dogs.    
 
A motion was made by Jack Shelby supported by George Gancsos Jr., to recommend to the  
Township Board approval of the Conditional Use Permit for Dog Grooming, Boarding and Day Care 
at 2299 W Michigan Ave. With these stipulations; Hours of operation Monday –Saturday 7am to  
7pm with no day care on Sunday. No use of outdoor exercise yard from 9pm to 6am, capacity of 
dogs= 60- 50 boarding and day care and 10 grooming.  8 ft. privacy fence to be put around exercise  
yard, any additional lighting put in must face down, and must have a fire KNOX (lock) Box  in place.  
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
Proposed Amendments to 150-150 Height Exemptions and 150.151 Accessory Structures 
 
Amendment to 150-150 (B) (2); accessory structures located in any single and two family  
Residential districts may not be located in front of the primary structure.  
Amendment to 150.151 (B); detached accessory buildings may not be located in front of the  
primary structure and change the height restriction from 14 feet to 16 feet.  
 
A motion was made by Todd Emmons supported by George Gancsos Jr to publish the proposed  
Amendments for a public hearing.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
Election of officers 2019 
 
Slate of Officers Jack Shelby, Chairman; Allan Hooper, Vice Chairman and Laurie Cunningham,  
Secretary.  A motion was made by George Gancsos Jr supported by Tom Biela to elect slate of 
officers for 2019.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Meeting adjourned at 7:00 pm by Jack Shelby, Chairman 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
________________  
Laurie Cunningham, Secretary 
 
Summit Township Planning Commission 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 41 



This page is intentionally blank. 

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 42 



  
www.region2planning.com/jackson-county-planning-commission/ 

 

Jackson County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 
 

COORDINATED ZONING REPORT | #19-10 

 To: County Planning Commissioners 
 From: Grant E. Bauman 
 Date: June 13, 2019 

 Proposal: The rezoning of a property in Hanover Township 

Request 

Properties are proposed for rezoning to ‘Light Industrial (I-1)’ from ‘Agricultural (AG)’. 

Purpose 

The purpose of the request is for Levy Machining LLC (see the ‘Zoning Amendment Form’).* 

Location and Size of the Property 

The subject properties (ID# 000-17-21-176-001-02 and ID# 000-17-21-176-001-07) are situated in Sec-
tion 21 (T4S-R2W) of the Township (see Figure 1). They are located in the southeastern corner of the in-
tersection of Roundtree and Folks Roads, north of the Village of Hanover, and have a combined area of 
approximately 55 acres. 

Land Use and Zoning 

Current Land Use – The subject properties are currently utilized for the ‘Farming of Crops’, according 
to the Township, and the surrounding area is a mix of ‘Agricultural & Single-family residential’ uses (see 
the ‘Rezoning Worksheet Form’). 

Future Land Use – The Hanover Township Master Plan places the subject properties in a transitional 
space between areas recommended for ‘Single-Family Residential’ and ‘Agricultural’ uses (see Figure 2). 

Current Zoning – The subject properties are zoned ‘Agricultural (AG)’, as are all surrounding properties 
in the Township (see Figure 3). 

Public Facilities and Environmental Constraints 

Water and Sewer Availability – Municipal water and sewer services are not provided to the subject 
properties, and there are no plans to extend them, according to the Township (see the Rezoning Work-
sheet Form). 

Public Road/Street Access – Roundtree Road is a paved county primary providing direct access to 
both parcels. Folk Road, a paved county local, provides direct access to the northern property. 

                                                 
* Please note that the proposed use is listed for informational purposes only. It should not be utilized in making the rezoning 
decision. Circumstances may change tomorrow which make the proposed use impractical. All of the uses that the proposed 
zoning designation would allow are pertinent to the rezoning request. 

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 43 



CZ #19-10 Page 2 
 

Environmental Constraints – The subject property has no known environmental constraints accord-
ing to the Township (see the Rezoning Worksheet Form). 

Analysis and Recommendation 

Township Planning Commission Recommendation – Based upon comments received from the public 
(not provided), the applicant inquired about the possibility of offering a Conditional Rezoning by limiting 
the area to 5 acres and having a maximum of 10 employees. 

The Hanover Township Planning Commission failed to pass a motion to approve the proposed condi-
tional rezoning to ‘I-1’ during its May 14, 2019 meeting (see the Zoning Amendment Form and meeting 
minutes). 

JCPC Staff Analysis – JCPC staff has the following concerns regarding the Conditional Rezoning request: 

 Rezoning the property to ‘Light Industrial (I-1)’ could be considered ‘spot zoning’, given that 
none of the adjoining properties are zoned ‘I-1’ and the master plan does not recommend indus-
trial uses in that part of the Township. Reducing the area of the rezoning to 5 acres only magni-
fies the ‘spot zone’. 

 Sec. 405 of the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act (MZEA) (PA 110 of 2006, MCL 125.3405) does al-
low Conditional Rezonings. However, the most recent edition of the Hanover Township Zoning 
Ordinance available to JCPC staff (i.e., September, 2006), does provide this option. Subsection 
405(1) of the MZEA also states that the Conditional Rezoning offer must be made by the appli-
cant in writing. According to the meeting minutes, the offer was made verbally. The Township’s 
attorney should be consulted to determine if the Planning Commission had the authority to con-
sider a conditional rezoning. 

 The site sketch provided as part of the meeting minutes is too vague. For example, what is the 
width and depth of the proposed 5-acre area? How far north of the subject properties’ south-
ernmost property line is that 5 acres located? 

 One of the reasons on the form indicating the action taken by the Planning Commission is that it 
the request does not agree with the master plan. The master plan is very old. Also, the reason-
ing provided on that form is not recorded in the meeting minutes. 

JCPC Staff Advisement – Rezoning the property to ‘Light Industrial (I-1)’ could be considered ‘spot zon-
ing’. There are also procedural concerns regarding the conditional rezoning request and the age of the 
master plan used to justify the recommendation. 

Based upon this analysis, staff advises the Jackson County Planning Commission to recommend DISAP-
PROVAL of the ‘Light Industrial (I-1)’ conditional rezoning request to the Hanover Township Board, for 
the following reasons: 

 Rezoning the property to ‘Light Industrial (I-1)’ could be considered ‘spot zoning’. 

 The Township’s attorney should be consulted to determine if the Planning Commission had the 
authority to consider a conditional rezoning. 

 The site sketch provided as part of the meeting minutes is too vague. 

 The master plan is very old 

Staff Report Attachments: 

 Background information provided by Hanover Township 

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 44 



CZ #19-10 Page 3 
 

Figure 1 

Location 

 

Figure 2 

Municipal Future Land Use 

 

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 45 



CZ #19-10 Page 4 
 

Figure 3 

Municipal Zoning 

 

Figure 4a 

Aerial Photo 

 

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 46 



CZ #19-10 Page 5 
 

Figure 4b 

Aerial Photo 

 

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 47 



6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 48 

gbauman
Typewriter
19    10



6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 49 

gbauman
Typewriter
19     10



6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 50 



6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 51 



6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 52 



6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 53 



6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 54 



6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 55 



6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 56 



6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 57 



This page is intentionally blank. 

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 58 



  
www.region2planning.com/jackson-county-planning-commission/ 

 

Jackson County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 
 

COORDINATED ZONING REPORT | #19-11 

 To: County Planning Commissioners 
 From: Grant E. Bauman 
 Date: June 13, 2019 

 Proposal: The rezoning of a property in Blackman Township 

Request 

The eastern ⅓ (approximately) of the primary property (in terms of size) is zoned ‘General Commercial 
(C-2)’. The current zoning of the western ⅔ (approximately) of the primary parcel and all of the second-
ary parcel is ‘Urban Residential (RU-1)’. The applicant wants the zoning of both properties to be ‘C-2’. 

Purpose 

The proposed use for the properties is an insulation business, according to the Zoning Administrator.* 

Location and Size of the Property 

The two subject properties are located in Section 27 (T2S,R1W) of the Township, on the south side of I-
94 (see Figure 1). The primary parcel (ID# 000-08-27-178-001-01) is situated on the west side of Lansing 
Avenue (3.3 acres) and the landlocked secondary property (ID# 000-08-27-178-001-02) is located di-
rectly to the west (0.2 acres). Nearby institutional landmarks include the County of Jackson’s Human Ser-
vices and Northlawn Buildings to the south and Mount Hope Community Church and Da Vinci Institute 
Primary to the north. 

Land Use and Zoning 

Current Land Use – The subject properties are currently vacant (see Figures 5a and 5b). I-94 borders 
the primary property to the north. Commercial properties are located on the east side of Lansing Ave-
nue, as well south of the subject properties on its west side, with the exception of a home. Other prop-
erties to the south are residential in nature. The larger of the properties to the west is also residential 
and the smaller landlocked property is vacant; both are owned by the same couple. 

Future Land Use – The Land Use Plan map in the recently adopted edition of the Blackman Charter 
Township Master Plan places the primary property in a transitional space between areas recommended 
for ‘General Commercial’ and ‘Medium Density Residential’ uses, on the south side of I-94 (see Figure 2). 
The secondary parcel is located entirely within the area recommended for ‘Medium Density Residential’ 
uses. Properties to the east and southeast are in the area recommended for ‘General Commercial’ uses 

                                                 
* Please note that the proposed use is listed for informational purposes only. It should not be utilized in making the rezoning 
decision. Circumstances may change tomorrow which make the proposed use impractical. All of the uses that the proposed 
zoning designation would allow are pertinent to the rezoning request. 

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 59 



CZ #19-11 Page 2 
 

and properties to the southwest and west are in the area recommended for ‘Medium Density Residen-
tial’ uses. 

Current Zoning – The eastern ⅓ of the primary property (approximately) is zoned ‘General Commercial 
(C-2)’ (see Figure 3). The current zoning of the western ⅔ of the primary parcel (approximately) and all 
of the secondary parcel is ‘Urban Residential (RU-1)’. Properties to the east and southeast are zoned ‘C-
2’ and properties to the southwest and west are zoned ‘RU-1’. 

Public Facilities and Environmental Constraints 

Water and Sewer Availability – Mapping in the recently adopted Blackman Charter Township Master 
Plan indicate that the subject properties are not connected to water and sanitary sewer, although sewer 
service is available on the east side of Lansing Avenue. The Zoning Administrator states that sewer ser-
vice is also available in the residential neighborhood located directly to the south of the properties. 

Public Road/Street Access – Lansing Avenue provides access to the primary property, but the sec-
ondary property is landlocked. The Master Plan identifies Lansing Avenue as an arterial road, “intended 
for relatively high speed through traffic providing as little access to individual properties as possible to 
ensure safe and efficient travel”. It is built to Class A Road standards and classified as a primary road by 
the Jackson County Department of Transportation (JCDOT). 

Environmental Constraints – Mapping in the Master Plan show that hydric soils, flood zones, and 
wetlands do not impact the subject properties. The only constraint is that a portion of the primary prop-
erty is located in a high groundwater recharge area (see the background information), but much of that 
area is already zoned ‘General Commercial (C-2)’. 

Analysis and Recommendation 

Township Planning Commission Recommendation – The Blackman Township Planning Commission 
passed a motion recommending approval of the proposed rezoning to ‘C-2’ during its May 21, 2019 
meeting (see the Zoning Amendment Form). 

JCPC Staff Analysis – Blackman Township’s Zoning Plan contains the following criteria upon which a re-
zoning request must be considered: 

1. Is the proposed rezoning consistent with the policies and uses proposed for that area in the 
Master Plan? 

Yes. The recently adopted edition of the Blackman Charter Township Master Plan places the pri-
mary property in a transitional space between areas recommended for ‘General Commercial’ 
and ‘Medium Density Residential’ uses (see Figure 2). The Zoning Plan element of the Master 
Plan equates the ‘General Commercial’ LUP category to the ‘General Commercial (C-2)’, ‘High-
way Service Commercial (C-3)’, and ‘Planned Commercial (PC-1)’ zoning districts. 

2. Will all of the uses allowed under the proposed rezoning be compatible with other zones and 
uses in the surrounding area? 

Yes. The Lansing Avenue frontage of the primary parcel is already zoned ‘General Commercial 
(C-2)’ and commercially developed properties are located on the east side of that roadway. The 
remainder of the primary parcel and all of the secondary parcel are landlocked. 

  

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 60 



CZ #19-11 Page 3 
 

3. Will public services and facilities be significantly adversely impacted by a development or use 
allowed under the requested rezoning? 

No. Commercial development of the entirety of the subject properties should not have a nega-
tive impact on available public services and facilities. Any potential added congestion on Lansing 
Avenue is already possible given that the frontage of the primary property is already zoned 
‘General Commercial (C-2)’. 

4. Will the uses allowed under the proposed rezoning be equally or better suited to the area 
than uses allowed under the current zoning district? 

Yes. Commercial development is already located along Landing Avenue. 

5. Will the uses allowed under the proposed rezoning be equally or better suited to the area 
than uses allowed under the current zoning district? 

Yes. The only environmental constraint regarding the subject properties is the presence of a 
high groundwater recharge area, most of which occupies the portion of the primary property 
already zoned ‘General Commercial (C-2)’. This can be dealt with through the site plan review 
process which is required for “[a]ny building or structure in a commercial, office and industrial 
district” according to Sec. 5.6.1.d of the Blackman Township Zoning Ordinance. 

JCPC Staff Advisement – It must be noted that the ‘General Commercial (C-2)’ district may not be appro-
priate for the proposed use. It is the opinion of staff that an insulation business falls under ‘skilled trade 
services including plumbing, electric, heating, printing, and painting establishments’, a permitted use in 
the ‘Light Industrial (I-1)’ district (per Sec. 4.5.1.a.9 of the Blackman Township Zoning Ordinance) rather 
than the ‘C-2’ district. 

Based upon this analysis, staff advises the Jackson County Planning 
Commission to recommend APPROVAL WITH COMMENTS of the 
‘General Commercial (C-2)’rezoning of the approximately western 
⅔ of the property known as ID# 000-08-27-178-001-01 and all of 
the parcel known as ID# 000-08-27-178-001-02 to the Blackman 
Township Board: 

 In the opinion of the JCPC, ‘C-2’ zoning is not appropriate for 
the proposed use of the subject properties prompting the re-
zoning request. 

Staff Report Attachments: 

 Background information provided by Blackman Township 

  

Suggested Actions: 

(1) Recommend APPROVAL 
(2) Recommend DISAPPROVAL 
(3) Recommend APPROVAL 

WITH COMMENTS 
(4) Take NO ACTION 

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 61 



CZ #19-11 Page 4 
 

Figure 1 

Location 

 

Figure 2 

Municipal Future Land Use 

 

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 62 



CZ #19-11 Page 5 
 

Figure 3 

Municipal Zoning 

 

Figure 4a 

Aerial Photo 

 

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 63 



CZ #19-11 Page 6 
 

Figure 4b 

Aerial Photo 

 

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 64 



JCPC Case #;
(For JCPC Use Only ) ZONING AMENDMENT FORM

JACKSON COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION
(COORDINATING ZONING)

Return to: Jackson County Planning Commission •c/o Region 2 Planning Commission •120 W. Michigan Avenue •Jackson,Michigan 49201
Please submit the Planning Commission meeting minutes and any reports/exhibits the Commission used to makes its recommendation with this form. Usea separate form for each proposed zoning change. Please include a legal description/ survey with rezoning requests in addition to the Parcel ID Number.

A copy of this form with the JCPC recommendation will be mailed back to the Clerk, who will return a copy to the JCPC with the Township Board Action.

& L C K C KTHE TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION submits the following proposed zoning change to the Jackson
County Planning Commission for its review, comment, and recommendation:
(ANSWER EITHER A or B)
A DISTRICT BOUNDARY CHANGE (REZONING):

(Provide the legal and popular property descriptions, the Parcel ID Number(s), the number of acres, and the section(s) in which the
property is located. Attach additional sheets if more space is needed. Attach a map showing all changes and additions.)

Q Q° - o 3 - X J - l -&• ! ~ o i i Q Q C -1 1 " M Z - c o j - 0 k

u r i? f t S i C\U1, The above described property has a proposed zoning change FROM
ZONE TO ^ ^ ^h c r c i c v i

2. PURPOSE OF PROPOSED CHANGE:

f\c-1 ZONE.
A/ ? U fi r\

B ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT:
The following Article(s) and Section(s) is amended or altered: ARTICLE _
The NEW SECTION reads as follows: (Attach additional sheets if more space is needed.)

SECTION

lo I 9day X.IC. PUBLIC HEARING on the above amendment was held on: month *A
D. NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING was published/mailed on the following date: month f iL day k

year

year ko ) .̂
(Notice must be provided at least fifteen days prior to the public hearing.)

E. THE NEWSPAPER {having general circulation in Township) carrying the NOTICE: K S
The PROPOS|gfzONtJ^G AMENDMENT described herein was duly considered by the Township Planning Commission and will be
forwarded^ the

CLlbf\

oard with a recommendation to (^APPROVE or ( ) DISAPPROVE.
MChair or ( ) Secretary ^ f / Zof*/ (enter date)

JACKSON COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION (JCPC) ACTION:
1. Date of Meeting: month

&

day year
2. The JCPC herewith certifies receipt of the proposed amendment on the above date and:

( ) Recommends APPROVAL of the zoning change
( ) Recommends DISAPPROVAL of the zoning change for the reasons stated in the attached letter.
( ) Recommends APPROVAL of the zoning change with comments, as stated in the attached letter,
( ) Takes NO ACTION.

( ) Chair or ( ) Secretary (enter date)
TOWNSHIP BOARD ACTION:

1. Date of Meeting: month
2. The

day year
Township Board herewith certifies that a legally constituted meeting held on the above date and that

the proposed amendment ( ) PASSED, ( ) DID NOT PASS, or was { ) REFERRED ANEW to the Township Planning Commission.

Township Clerk

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 65 

gbauman
Typewriter
19    11



 

120 West Michigan Avenue • Jackson, Michigan  49201 •  (517) 788-4426 •  (517) 788-4635 
 

 MEMORANDUM 

 To: Blackman Charter Township Planning Commission 

 From: Grant E. Bauman, Principal Planner 

 Date: April 19, 2019 

 Subject: Case #1502 Rezoning Advisement 

Location and Size – The two subject properties are located in Section 27 (T2S,R1W) of the Township, 
on the south side of I-94 (see Figure 1). The primary parcel (ID# 000-08-27-178-001-01)—in terms of 
size—is situated on the west side of Lansing Avenue (3.3 acres) and the landlocked secondary property 
(ID# 000-08-27-178-001-02) is located directly to the west (0.2 acres). Nearby institutional landmarks 
include the County of Jackson’s Human Services and Northlawn Buildings to the south and Mount Hope 
Community Church and Da Vinci Institute Primary to the north. 

Applicant – Tod and Shelly Spink are the applicants. Robert G. Wigent is the current owner of the prop-
erties. Robert G. Wigent II, the durable power of attorney for the owner, has granted permission for the 
rezoning request (please see the attached background information). 

Request – The eastern ⅓ of the primary property (approximately) is zoned ‘General Commercial (C-2)’. 
The current zoning of the western ⅔ of the primary parcel (approximately) and all of the secondary par-
cel is ‘Urban Residential (RU-1)’. The applicant wants both of the properties to be zoned entirely ‘C-2’. 
The proposed use for the properties is an insulation business, according to the Zoning Administrator.* 

Staff Findings 

Land Use and Zoning 

Existing Land Use – The subject properties are currently vacant (see Figures 5a and 5b). I-94 borders 
the primary property to the north. Commercial properties are located on the east side of Lansing Ave-
nue, as well south of the subject properties on its west side, with the exception of a home. Other prop-
erties to the south are residential in nature. The larger of the properties to the west is also residential 
and the smaller landlocked property is vacant; both are owned by the same couple. 

                                                 
* Please note that the proposed use is listed for informational purposes only. It should not be utilized in making the rezoning 
decision. Circumstances may change tomorrow which make the proposed use impractical. All of the uses that the proposed 
zoning designation would allow are pertinent to the rezoning request. 

However, it must be noted that the ‘General Commercial (C-2)’ district may not be appropriate for the proposed use. It is the 
opinion of R2PC staff that an insulation business falls under ‘skilled trade services including plumbing, electric, heating, printing, 
and painting establishments’, a permitted use in the ‘Light Industrial (I-1)’ district (per Sec. 4.5.1.a.9 of the Blackman Township 
Zoning Ordinance) rather than the ‘C-2’ district. Conversely, the Zoning Administrator recognizes that at least a couple of heat-
ing and cooling businesses are already located in the Township’s ‘C-2’ and ‘C-3 (Highway Service Commercial)’ districts. The 
Zoning Administrator will make an interpretation of the Zoning Ordinance in order to determine if the proposed use is appropri-
ate in the ‘C-2’ district. An appeal to his interpretation should be made to the Township’s Zoning Board of Appeals, not its Plan-
ning Commission. 

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 66 



Case #1502 Rezoning Advisement Page 2 

Future Land Use – The Land Use Plan map in the recently adopted edition of the Blackman Charter 
Township Master Plan places the primary property in a transitional space between areas recommended 
for ‘General Commercial’ and ‘Medium Density Residential’ uses, on the south side of I-94 (see Figure 2). 
The secondary parcel is located entirely within the area recommended for ‘Medium Density Residential’ 
uses. Properties to the east and southeast are in the area recommended for ‘General Commercial’ uses 
and properties to the southwest and west are in the area recommended for ‘Medium Density Residen-
tial’ uses. 

Current Zoning – The eastern ⅓ of the primary property (approximately) is zoned ‘General Commercial 
(C-2)’ (see Figure 3). The current zoning of the western ⅔ of the primary parcel (approximately) and all of 
the secondary parcel is ‘Urban Residential (RU-1)’. Properties to the east and southeast are zoned ‘C-2’ 
and properties to the southwest and west are zoned ‘RU-1’. 

Proposed Zoning – The applicant wants to rezone the western ⅔ of the primary parcel (approxi-
mately), and all of the secondary parcel, ‘General Commercial (C-2)’. 

Public Facilities and Environmental Constraints 

Water and Sewer Availability – Mapping in the recently adopted Blackman Charter Township Master 
Plan indicate that the subject properties are not connected to water and sanitary sewer, although sewer 
service is available on the east side of Lansing Avenue. The Zoning Administrator states that sewer ser-
vice is also available in the residential neighborhood located directly to the south of the properties. 

Public Road/Street Access – Lansing Avenue provides access to the primary property; the secondary 
property is landlocked. The Master Plan identifies Lansing Avenue as an arterial road, “intended for rela-
tively high speed through traffic providing as little access to individual properties as possible to ensure 
safe and efficient travel”. It is built to Class A Road standards and classified as a primary road by the 
Jackson County Department of Transportation (JCDOT). 

Environmental Constraints – Mapping in the Master Plan show that hydric soils, flood zones, and 
wetlands do not impact the subject properties. The only constraint is that a portion of the primary prop-
erty is located in a high groundwater recharge area (see Figure 4), but much of that area is already 
zoned ‘General Commercial (C-2)’. 

Analysis of Findings and Recommendation 

The Township’s Zoning Plan—an element of the Blackman Charter Township Master Plan—contains the 
following criteria upon which a rezoning request must be considered: 

1. Is the proposed rezoning consistent with the policies and uses proposed for that area in the 
Master Plan? 

Yes. The recently adopted edition of the Blackman Charter Township Master Plan places the pri-
mary property in a transitional space between areas recommended for ‘General Commercial’ 
and ‘Medium Density Residential’ uses (see Figure 2). The Zoning Plan element of the Master 
Plan equates the ‘General Commercial’ LUP category to the ‘General Commercial (C-2)’, ‘High-
way Service Commercial (C-3)’, and ‘Planned Commercial (PC-1)’ zoning districts. 

2. Will all of the uses allowed under the proposed rezoning be compatible with other zones and 
uses in the surrounding area? 

Yes. The Lansing Avenue frontage of the primary parcel is already zoned ‘General Commercial 
(C-2)’ and commercially developed properties are located on the east side of that roadway. The 
remainder of the primary parcel and all of the secondary parcel are landlocked. 

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 67 



Case #1502 Rezoning Advisement Page 3 

3. Will public services and facilities be significantly adversely impacted by a development or use 
allowed under the requested rezoning? 

No. Commercial development of the entirety of the subject properties should not have a nega-
tive impact on available public services and facilities. Any potential added congestion on Lansing 
Avenue is already possible given that the frontage of the primary property is already zoned 
‘General Commercial (C-2)’. 

4. Will the uses allowed under the proposed rezoning be equally or better suited to the area 
than uses allowed under the current zoning district? 

Yes. The only environmental constraint regarding the subject properties is the presence of a 
high groundwater recharge area, most of which occupies the portion of the primary property 
already zoned ‘General Commercial (C-2)’. This can be dealt with through the site plan review 
process which is required for “[a]ny building or structure in a commercial, office and industrial 
district” according to Sec. 5.6.1.d of the Blackman Township Zoning Ordinance. 

Staff Advisement – Staff advises the Planning Commission to recommend APPROVAL of the ‘General 
Commercial (C-2)’rezoning of the approximately western ⅔ of the property known as ID# 000-08-27-
178-001-01 and all of the parcel known as ID# 000-08-27-178-001-02 to the Township Board. However, 
it should be noted that in the opinion of R2PC staff, ‘C-2’ zoning is not appropriate for the proposed use 
of the subject properties prompting the rezoning request (see the footnote on page 1 of this memo). 

Figure 1 

Location 

 

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 68 



Case #1502 Rezoning Advisement Page 4 

Figure 2 

Township Future Land Use 

 

Figure 3 

Current Zoning 

 

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 69 



Case #1502 Rezoning Advisement Page 5 

Figure 4 

Groundwater Recharge Areas 

 

Figure 5a 

Aerial Photograph 

 

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 70 



Case #1502 Rezoning Advisement Page 6 

Figure 5b 

Aerial Photograph 

 

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 71 



Case #1502 Rezoning Advisement Page 7 

 

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 72 



Case #1502 Rezoning Advisement Page 8 

 

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 73 



This page is intentionally blank. 

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 74 



  
www.region2planning.com/jackson-county-planning-commission/ 

 

Jackson County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 
 

COORDINATED ZONING REPORT | #19-12 

 To: County Planning Commissioners 
 From: Grant E. Bauman 
 Date: June 13, 2019 

 Proposal: The rezoning of a property in Concord Township 

Request 

A property is proposed for rezoning to ‘Industrial (I)’ from ‘Commercial (C)’. 

Purpose 

The request’s purpose is ‘to promote and accommodate business’ (see the ‘Zoning Amendment Form’).* 

Location and Size of the Property 

The subject properties (ID# 000-11-27-226-002-02, ID# 000-11-27-226-002-05, and ID# 000-11-27-226-
002-06) are situated in Section 27 (T3S-R3W) of the Township (see Figure 1). They are located in the 
northwest corner of the intersection of M-60 and Concord Road, just north of the Village of Concord, 
and have a combined area of <9 acres. 

Land Use and Zoning 

Current Land Use – The subject parcels are currently used for commercial purposes, according to the 
Township (see the ‘Zoning Amendment Form’). Surrounding properties contain a mix of agricultural and 
single-family and multiple-family residential uses. 

Future Land Use – The Concord Area Master Plan places the subject properties in an area recom-
mended for ‘Agricultural’ uses, as are the surrounding parcels in the Township (see Figure 2). Properties 
along M-60 in the Village are recommended for either ‘Highway Commercial’ or ‘Mixed Use’. 

Current Zoning – The subject property is zoned ‘Commercial (C)’, as are adjacent parcels to the east 
and south (see Figure 3). Properties to the north and west are zoned ‘Agricultural (AG)’. 

Public Facilities and Environmental Constraints 

Water and Sewer Availability – Municipal water and sewer services are not provided to the subject 
properties and there are no plans to extend them (see the Rezoning Worksheet Form). 

Public Road/Street Access – M-60, a state highway, and Concord Road, a paved county primary north 
of the Village, provides direct access to the subject parcels. 

                                                 
* Please note that the proposed use is listed for informational purposes only. It should not be utilized in making the rezoning 
decision. Circumstances may change tomorrow which make the proposed use impractical. All of the uses that the proposed 
zoning designation would allow are pertinent to the rezoning request. 

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 75 



CZ #19-12 Page 2 
 

Environmental Constraints – The subject property has no known environmental constraints accord-
ing to the Township (see the Rezoning Worksheet Form). 

Analysis and Recommendation 

Township Planning Commission Recommendation – The Concord Township Planning Commission 
passed a motion to approve the proposed rezoning to ‘I’ during its May 14, 2019 meeting (see the ‘Zon-
ing Amendment Form’). 

JCPC Staff Analysis – Concord Township’s Zoning Plan contains the following criteria upon which a re-
zoning request must be considered: 

1. Is the proposed rezoning consistent with the policies and uses proposed for that area in the 
Master Plan? 

No. ‘Industrial’ uses are not planned for the general area. ‘Agricultural’ uses are proposed for 
the subject properties as are the surrounding parcels in the Township (see Figure 2). Properties 
along M-60 in the Village are recommended for either ‘Highway Commercial’ or ‘Mixed Use’ 
uses. Concord Township’s Zoning Plan equates the ‘Agricultural’ future land use category to the 
‘AG’ zoning district. 

2. Will all of the uses allowed under the proposed rezoning be compatible with other zones and 
uses in the surrounding area? 

No. None of the adjoining properties are zoned ‘I-1’. 

3. Will public services and facilities be significantly adversely impacted by a development or use 
allowed under the requested rezoning? 

No. M-60 is built to ‘Class A’ road standards and Concord Road is a county primary north of the 
highway. Water and sewer services are not available. 

4. Will the uses allowed under the proposed rezoning be equally or better suited to the area 
than uses allowed under the current zoning district? 

No. Rezoning the properties to ‘Industrial (I)’ could be considered ‘spot zoning’, given that none 
of the adjoining properties are zoned ‘I-1’ and the master plan does not recommend industrial 
uses in that part of the Township. 

JCPC Staff Advisement – ‘Industrial’ uses are not planned for the general area and adjoining properties 
are not zoned ‘I-1’, raising the issue of ‘spot zoning’. 

Based upon this analysis, staff advises the Jackson County Planning 
Commission to recommend DISAPPROVAL of the ‘Industrial (I)’ re-
zoning request to the Concord Township Board. 

Staff Report Attachments: 

 Background information provided by Concord Township 

  

Suggested Actions: 

(1) Recommend APPROVAL 
(2) Recommend DISAPPROVAL 
(3) Recommend APPROVAL 

WITH COMMENTS 
(4) Take NO ACTION 

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 76 



CZ #19-12 Page 3 
 

Figure 1 

Location 

 

Figure 2 

Municipal Future Land Use 

 

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 77 



CZ #19-12 Page 4 
 

Figure 3 

Municipal Zoning 

 

Figure 4a 

Aerial Photo 

 

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 78 



CZ #19-12 Page 5 
 

Figure 4b 

Aerial Photo 

 

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 79 



6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 80 

gbauman
Typewriter
19    12



6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 81 

gbauman
Typewriter
19     12



6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 82 



6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 83 



6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 84 



6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 85 



6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 86 



6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 87 



6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 88 



6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 89 



This page is intentionally blank. 

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 90 



  
www.region2planning.com/jackson-county-planning-commission 

 

Jackson County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 

COORDINATED ZONING REPORT | #19-13 

 To: County Planning Commissioners 
 From: Grant E. Bauman 
 Date: June 13, 2019 

 Proposal: ‘Indoor Sport Shooting Ranges’ in Leoni Township’s General Business District 

The Request and Background Information 

The Leoni Township Planning Commission proposes an amendment to Chapter 42 (Zoning) of the Leoni 
Township Code of Ordinances pertaining to the regulation of Indoor Sport Shooting Ranges as a condi-
tional use in the General Business (B-4) District. 

The proposed amendment reads as follows: 

Sec. 42-214. - General business district (B-4). 

. . . 

(c) Conditional uses. Conditional uses are as follows: 

. . . 

(10) Sport shooting ranges as defined in MCL 691.1541(d) that comply with ‘generally accepted 
operation practices’ as defined in MCL 691.1541(a) and that comply with other conditions 
imposed by the Township. Any conditional use permit issued by the Township for this use 
prior to the enactment of this paragraph is ratified and re-issued by the Township under 
identical terms and conditions. 

. . . 

The proposed amendment would: 

 Add Sport Shooting Ranges to the listing of conditional uses in the B-4 District. 

 Ratify and reissue any conditional use permit issued by the Township for this use prior to the 
enactment of the amendment under identical terms and conditions. 

 Refer to the definition for Sport Shooting Ranges in PA 269 of 1989: 

“Sport shooting range” or “range” means an area designed and operated for the use of 
archery, rifles, shotguns, pistols, silhouettes, skeet, trap, black powder, or any other simi-
lar sport shooting (MCL 691.1541(d)). 

 Require compliance with the ‘generally accepted operation practices’ listed in PA 269 of 1989: 

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 91 



CZC #19-13 Page 2 
 

“Generally accepted operation practices” means those practices adopted by the commis-
sion of natural resources that are established by a nationally recognized nonprofit mem-
bership organization that provides voluntary firearm safety programs that include train-
ing individuals in the safe handling and use of firearms, which practices are developed 
with consideration of all information reasonably available regarding the operation of 
shooting ranges. The generally accepted operation practices shall be reviewed at least 
every 5 years by the commission of natural resources and revised as the commission con-
siders necessary. The commission shall adopt generally accepted operation practices 
within 90 days of the effective date of section 2a (MCL 691.1541(a)). 

The Michigan Department of Natural Resources’ (MDNR’s) ‘generally accepted operation prac-
tices’ are based upon the operating specifications outlined in specific sections, chapters, and ar-
ticles of the National Rifle Association (NRA) Range Source Book, A Guide to Planning & Con-
struction, 2012. Those sections, chapters, and articles are specified in a 3/18/19 MDNR memo 
(‘click’ here to see the memo). The remaining portions of the source book are “considered infor-
mational to the named Sections, Chapters and Articles”. 

The Leoni Township Planning Commission passed a motion on 5/15/19 to: . . .amend the agenda as fol-
lows: Under New business #2 wording from "Sport Shooting Ranges” change to "Indoor Sport Shooting 
Ranges" which would be B4 Zoning also, new business #4 from “any” real estate property zoned AG to 
“its existing” real estate property zoned AG. 

The Leoni Township Planning Commission also passed a motion on 5/15/19 to: . . .add Indoor Sport 
Shooting Range in B4 to paragraph 10 of zoning ordinance as written by attorney (See attached). 

Staff Analysis 

 The meeting minutes indicate that the motion passed by the Leoni Township Planning Commis-
sion was to add Indoor Sport Shooting Ranges as a conditional use in the B-4 District. Accord-
ingly, Sport Shooting Ranges should be changed to Indoor Sport Shooting Ranges in Sec. 42-
214(c)(10). 

 Zoning is not retroactive, as evidenced by the regulation of nonconformities in Sec. 42-347 of 
the Township’s zoning code. Therefore, staff does not think it appropriate to state: Any condi-
tional use permit issued by the Township for this use prior to the enactment of this paragraph is 
ratified and re-issued by the Township under identical terms and conditions. 

 The National Rifle Association (NRA) Range Source Book, A Guide to Planning & Construction, 
2012, is cited as the source for the Sport Shooting Ranges ‘generally accepted operation prac-
tices’ adopted by the Michigan Department of Natural Resources (MDNR). That resource is not 
available online and must be purchased from the NRA. Accordingly, Leoni Township should 
consider obtaining a copy of the source book for reference when considering and administering 
conditional use permits. 

Staff Advisement – Based upon this analysis, staff advises the Jackson County Planning Commission to 
recommend APPROVAL WITH COMMENTS of the amendments regulating Sport Shooting Ranges as a 
conditional use in the B-4 District to the Leoni Township Board: 

 Change Sport Shooting Ranges to Indoor Sport Shooting Ranges in Sec. 42-214(c)(10). 

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 92 

https://www.michigan.gov/documents/dnr/Generally_Accepted_Operation_Practices_for_Sport_Shooting_Ranges_2019_652432_7.pdf


CZC #19-13 Page 3 
 

 The JCPC does not think it appropriate to state: Any condi-
tional use permit issued by the Township for this use prior to 
the enactment of this paragraph is ratified and re-issued by 
the Township under identical terms and conditions in Sec. 
42-214(c)(10). 

 Leoni Township should consider obtaining a copy of the Na-
tional Rifle Association (NRA) Range Source Book, A Guide 
to Planning & Construction, 2012, for reference. 

Staff Report Attachment(s): 

 Background information provided by Leoni Township 

Suggested Actions: 

(1) Recommend APPROVAL 
(2) Recommend DISAPPROVAL 
(3) Recommend APPROVAL 

WITH COMMENTS 
(4) Take NO ACTION 

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 93 



-JCPC Case #:
(ForJCPC Use Only) ZONING AMENDMENT FORM

JACKSON COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION
(COORDINATING ZONING)

Return to:Jackson County Planning Commission •c/o Region 2 Planning Commission •120 W. Michigan Avenue •Jackson, Michigan 49201
Please submit the Planning Commission meeting minutes and any reports/exhibits the Commission used to makes its recommendation with thisform. Use
a separateformfor each proposed zoning change. Please include a legal description/ survey with rezoning requestsln addition to the Parcel ID Number.
A copy of thisform with the JCPC recommendation will be mailed back to the Clerk,who will return a copy to the JCPC with the Township Board Action.

Ul-QrvtTHE
County Planning Commission for its review,comment, and recommendation:
(ANSWER EITHER A or B)
A. DISTRICT BOUNDARY CHANGE (REZONING):

(Provide the legal and popular property descriptions, the Parcel ID Number(s), the number of acres,and the section(s) in which the
property is located. Attach additional sheets if more space is needed. Attach a map showing all changes and additions.)

TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION submits the following proposed zoning change to the Jackson

1. The above described property has a proposed zoning change FROM
ZONE TO ) ZONE.

2. PURPOSE OF PROPOSED CHANGE:

B. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT:
The following Article(s) and Section(s) is amended or altered: ARTICLE 3 SECTION
The NEW SECTION reads as follows: (Attach additional sheets if more space is needed.)

"So Q 1/X c Vw hvf ft

day 1 ‘D year 3C \ ^Apn1 dayJL^
C. PUBLIC HEARING on the above amendment was held on: month
D. NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING was published/mailed on the following date: month

4
year

(Notice must be provided at least fifteen days prior to the public hearing.)
E. THE NEWSPAPER (having general circulation in Township) carrying the NOTICE:

-The PROPOSED ZONING AMENDMENT described herein was duly considered by the Township Planning Commission and will be
forwarded to the Township Board with a recommendation to [2APPROVE or Q DISAPPROVE.

S IXl Chair or Q Secretary / [5^ A^O [ Renter date)

JACKSON COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION (JCPC) ACTION:
1. Date of Meeting: month day year
2. The JCPC herewith certifies receipt of the proposed amendment on the above date and:

I I Recommends APPROVAL of the zoning change
I I Recommends DISAPPROVAL of the zoning change for the reasons stated in the attached letter.
I I Recommends APPROVAL of the zoning change with comments,as stated in the attached letter.
Q Takes NO ACTION.

,Recording Secretary; (enter date)
TOWNSHIP BOARD ACTION:

1. Date of Meeting: month
2. The

day year
Township Board herewith certifies that a legally constituted meeting held on the above date and that

the proposed amendment [3 PASSED,3DID NOT PASS, or was Q REFERRED ANEW to the Township Planning Commission.

Township Clerk
Revised:12/19/14

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 94 

gbauman
Typewriter
19     13



Exhibit A

To Jackson County Planning Commission

1.) Proposed text amendment to B-4 zoning to allow indoor sport
shooting ranges as conditional use

2.) Leoni Township Planning Commission meeting minutes of 5-15-19

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 95 



Resolved, the Township of Leoni Board refers to the Planning Commission for recommendation,
the following amendment to the zoning ordinance:

Sec. 42-214 of the Code of Ordinances is amended as follows:

Add to subsection (c) subparagraph (10) to read as follows:

(10) Sport shooting ranges as defined in MCL 691.1541(d) that comply with ‘generallyaccepted operation practices’ as defined in MCL 691.1541(a) and that comply with other conditionsimposed by the Township. Any conditional use permit issued by the Township for this use prior tothe enactment of this paragraph is ratified and re-issued by the Township under identical terms andconditions.

After amendment, Sec. 42-214 shall read:

Sec. 42-214. - General business district (B-4).

(a) Purpose.

(1) The general business district is composed of certain land and structures used to provide
for the retailing and wholesaling of goods, warehousing facilities, trucking facilities and
limited fabrication of goods. When any of these types of enterprises are permitted, theyare to be regulated in a manner that will protect the abutting residential districts, providereasonable compatibility with each other and prevent further "strip" zoning along major
thoroughfares.

(2) No land shall be used or occupied and no structure shall be designed, erected, moved,
altered, used or occupied except for one of several of the uses by right listed in this
section and lawful accessory uses thereto, or for one or several of the conditional uses
listed in this section.

(b) Permitted uses. Permitted uses are as follows:

(1) Antique shop, provided all articles are displayed or stored within the shop.
(2) Automobile, truck and trailer display, hire, sales and repair, including sales lot, paintingand body shop.

(3) Automotive supply parts and accessories.
(4) Bakery.

(5) Banks, loan offices and finance offices.
(6) Barbershop and/or beauty shop.

(7) Bowling alley, including bar and restaurant.

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 96 



(8) Bus station and travel agency.

(9) Business or trade school.

(10) Camera and photo supplies store. *

(11) Catering service, delicatessen and confectionery store.
Clothes or wearing apparel shop.(12)

Club, lodge or church.(13)

Crating and packing service.(14)

(15) Dairy products store.

(16) Dance studio.

Department store, specialty apparel, and discount stores.(17)

(18) Diaper, linen and towel supply service.

(19) Drugstore.

(20) Dry cleaning and laundry, custom and self-service.
(21) Dry goods or notions store.

Eating place, bar, grill, and cocktail lounge.(22)

(23) Egg and poultry store.

(24) Electrical supplies, wholesale and storage.

(25) Exterminator service.

(26) Factory and mill supplies.
Florist and gift shop.(27)

(28) Fruit and vegetable markets.

(29) Funeral home and ambulance service.

(30) Furniture and household furnishings.
(31) Garden and lawn supply store.

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 97 



(32) Grocery, supermarkets, and meat processing (no slaughtering).
(33) Hardware and sporting goods.

(34) Jukebox and vending machine service and distribution.

(35) Library and other public buildings.

(36) liquor store (sale by package only).

(37) Luggage and camping supplies and equipment.

(38) Malt beverage, liquor and wine distribution.

(39) Offices:Any office in which chattels or goods, wares or merchandise is not
commercially created, exchanged or sold.

(40) Office machines, sales and service.

Office supply store.(41)

(42) Ornamental iron work and fence service.

(43) Paint, wallpaper and floor coverings store.
(44) Printing and publishing, including processes related thereto.

Plumbing and heating and sheetmetal shops (including punching of material of one-
eighth inch or less in thickness).

(45)

(46) Radiator repair shop.

(47) Radio and TV sales, repair, and broadcasting stations.

(48) Resale shops, china, clothing and furniture, but not including auction houses.

(49) Shoe store, sale and repair.

(50) Sign painting and servicing shops.

(51) Special tools and gauges, checking and service.

(52) Theater, drive-in type, also theatrical studios.

(53) Tire and battery shops, rebuilding and recapping.

(54) Travel agency.

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 98 



Stone cutting, providing cutting operations are conducted within a completely
enclosed building.

(55)

(56) Toys, playground equipment and variety stores.

(57) Any other use which is determined by the zoning administrator to be of the same
general character as the uses by right listed in this subsection, but not including any use
which is first permitted in the M district.

Warehousing facilities.(58)

(59) Distribution centers.

(c) Conditional uses. Conditional uses are as follows:

(1) Auction houses, provided that merchandise for sale has been used (not new articles),
there are no public auctions on Sunday, no auctions shall not continue after 12:00
midnight, and all auctions shall be conducted within a building.

(2) Automobile service stations, provided:

a. Premises used for such purposes shall not be less than 200 feet from any place of
public assembly including any hospital, sanitarium, clinic or institution. Such
measurement shall be along the usual line of street travel. Hereafter, no gasoline
filling and/or service station shall be permitted if the location constitutes a
hazard to public safety and welfare.

b. Buildings used for such purposes shall not be nearer than 75 feet to any R
district

c. Any minor automobile repair work shall be done within the principal building on
the premises.

d. No overnight or weekend outside storage of trucks, trailers and/or tractors shall
be permitted on the premises, and no partially dismantled, wrecked or junked
vehicles shall be stored for more than a total of eight hours outside the buildings
on the premises.

e. When such use abuts the side and/or rear line of a lot in any R district, a
compact evergreen hedge, solid wall or painted board fence not less than five
feet shall be maintained at the property line.

(3) Recreational vehicle storage yards.

a. These premises shall be used for the storage of recreational vehicles bearing a
current license plate as of the time the vehicle is placed upon the premises, as

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 99 



well as maintaining a current plate and registration with the state during the full
length of storage.

b. All vehicles in storage must be contained inside of a minimum six-foot privacy
fence.

c. The sale of junked vehicles, or used vehicle parts, wrecked or salvage, and/or
inoperative or obsolete vehicles, at the site of a recreational vehicle storage yard
is prohibited.

d. The fundamental purpose of this subsection is to promote public health, safety,
and general welfare by allowing storage of recreational vehicles in certain areas
for the people of the township, and to prohibit and limit the storage of
inoperable motor vehicles.

(4) Automobile automatic wash and polish stations, provided that:

a. All operations shall be within an enclosed buildings.

b. The building shall have a setback of not less than 40 feet from any street line.

c. All vehicles on the premises, other than those being serviced, shall be provided
with off-street waiting lanes and off-street parking space.

d. When such use abuts the side and/or rear line of a lot in any R district, a
compact evergreen hedge, solid wall or painted board fence not less than five
feet shall be maintained at the property line.

(5) Veterinary hospital or kennel, animal hospital, veterinary clinic or kennel for household
pets only, provided that

a. There are no outside exercise runways or yards.

b. Any structure for such purposes shall be not less than 75 feet from any other
district.

(6) Motels; may include a bar, small retail shops and restaurant.
(7) It is the intent of this section to provide for the conversion of the upper floors of

existing commercial buildings and to extend their economic life by permitting the
conversion to one-family, two-family, and multiple-family residential dwelling units, and
to provide for a dwelling as an accessory use to a commercial use, subject to the
following conditions:

a. The dwelling units shall be secondary and incidental to a primary use permitted
in the district.

b. The dwelling units shall be contained in the same structure as the primary use.

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 100 



c. Dwelling units shall be used exclusively for living accommodation. No storage or
warehousing of goods and merchandise or the sale of such items shall be
permitted.

d. One off-street parking space shall be provided for each dwelling unit exclusive of
those provided for the existing commercial establishment All applicable
regulations specified in section 42-343 shall be complied with.

e. The dwelling units shall comply in all respects with the township building code
and state plumbing, electrical, energy and fire codes and regulations.

f. Every dwelling unit shall have not less than the required floor area specified
under section 42-362.

Planned unit development.(8)

(9) Adult uses.

a. Because some uses are recognized as having a deleterious effect upon adjacent areas, causing
blight, a chilling effect upon other businesses and occupants, and a disruption in
neighborhood development, especially when concentrated in a confined area, it is considered
necessary and in the best interest of the orderly and better development of the community to
prohibit the overcrowding of such uses into a particular location and require, instead, their
dispersal throughout the general business district and the highway business district of the
township to thereby minimize their adverse impact on any specific zoning district.

b. In order to prevent undesirable concentration of such uses, the following uses and activities
shall not be located within 1,000 feet of one other such use or any school, or within 300 feet
of any residentially zoned district, as measured along a line forming the shortest distance
between any portion of the respective properties of the existing and proposed following
specified uses and activities and between such uses and the adjoining residentially zoned
district:

1. Adult bookstore.

2. Adult motion picture theater.

3. Adult mini motion picture theater.

4. Adult smoking or sexual paraphernalia store.
5. Massage parlor.

6. Host or hostess establishments offering socialization with a host or hostess for a
consideration.

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 101 



7. Tavern or cabaret providing live or projected entertainment, including but not limited to
adult live entertainment establishments where intoxicating liquors may or may not be
sold for consumption on the premises. For purposes of this subsection, the term
"projected entertainment" shall not include standard television reception.

8. Any combination of such uses.

(10) Sport shooting ranges as defined in MCL 691.1541(d) that comply with "generally
accepted operation practices3 as defined in MCL 691.1541(a) and that comply with other
conditions imposed by the Township. Any conditional use permit issued by the Township
for this use prior to the enactment of this paragraph is ratified and re-issued by the
Township under identical terms and conditions.

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 102 



Leoni Township Office
913 Fifth Street

Michigan Center, Michigan 49254
PHONE: (517) 764-4694 FAX: (517) 764-1380

Leonitownship.com

PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES
Mav 15, 2019%/ 7

The Leoni Township Planning Commission held a meeting Wednesday, May 15, 2019 @ 6:30 p.m. 913
Fifth Street, Leoni Township Meeting Flail, Michigan Center, Michigan.

Meeting opened to call of the Chair: 6:32 pm

Members Present: V. Beckwith, J. Spencer, L. Maurer, J. Southworth, K. Cole, & B. Lester

Members absent:
Persons in attendance: 32

D. Helmlinger

Purpose of Planning Commission read by Spencer

Motion by Beckwith, supported by Maurer, to amend the agenda as follows: Under New business #2
wording from "Sport Shooting Ranges ” change to "Indoor Sport Shooting Ranges " which would be B4
Zoning also, new business #4 from’’any” real estate property zoned AG to “its existing” real estate
property zoned AG.
Roll Call Vote

t

5 Yays
1 Nay

Beckwith, Lester, Southworth, Spencer & Maurer
Cole

Motion carried.

Motion by Cole, supported by Spencer to approve the minutes of April 17, 2019 with correction to page 1
Ann Arbor Rd. changed to Page Ave.

Public Comment: Open at
Closed at

6:32 pm.
7:10 pm.

Old Business: 1) Discussion of Opting in/out of Recreational Marihuana Businesses.
Need a public hearing before discussing.

New Business: 1) Amend Zoning Ordinance to add Sport Shooting Ranges to
AG as Conditional Use.

Motion by Spencer, supported by Cole to adopt Sport Shooting Ranges to AG as conditional uses
defined in MCL691.1541d as defined in MCL691.1514(a)as written by attorney (See attached)
with additional language added to be: down range only, shooting through a window setting from
a benched position for long barreled guns and a standing position for hand guns. Also, to
include surveillance camera monitoring.
Roll call Vote 3 Yays

3 Nays
Beckwith, Spencer, & Lester
Maurer, Cole & Southworth

Motion Failed

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 103 



2) Amend the Zoning Ordinance to Add “Indoor Sport Shooting Ranges” to B4 Zoning as
Conditional Uses
Motion by Spencer supported by Beckwith to add Indoor Sport Shooting Range in B4 to paragraph 10 of
zoning ordinance as written by attorney (See attached).

5 Yays
1 Nay

Roll Call Vote Beckwith, Spencer, Maurer, Lester & Southworth
Cole

Motion carried.

Public Comment: Open at 8:33 pm.
Closed at 8:33 pm.

3) Amend the Zoning Ordinance to Add “any use not otherwise provided for” in the zoning
ordinance for Heavy Industrial as Conditional Uses.
Motion by Spencer, supported by Cole to amend any use not provided for in Heavy Industrial
as conditional uses as written by attorney. (See attached.)
Roll Call Vote: 6 Yays

0 Nays
Beckwith, Lester, Cole, Southworth, Spencer & Maurer

Motion carried.

4) Amend the Zoning Ordinance to “prohibit future Medical Marihuana grow and
processing facilities in AG Zones, with exception to the currently existing local licensees
that will be permitted to operate, commence operations and/or expand on any real estate
property zoned AG on the effective date of the legislation.
Motion by Spencer, supported by Beckwith to amend zoning ordinance to prohibit future MM
grow & processing facilities in AG Zones, with exception to the currently existing local licensees
that will be permitted to operate, commence operations and/or expand to its existing real estate
property zoned AG on the effective date of the legislation.
Roll Call Vote: 6 Yays

0 Nays
Beckwith, Lester, Cole, Southworth, Spencer & Maurer.

Motion carried.

Public Comment: Open at 9:00 pm.
Closed at 9:17 pm.

5) To amend the Agricultural Zoning Ordinance to include as a Conditional Use
“Agritourism”.
Motion by Spencer, supported by Cole to table and submit to attorney for recommendation to
amend the AG zoning ordinance to include as a conditional use Agritourism.

Public Comment: Open at
Closed at

10:08 pm.
10:15 pm.

Adjourn to the call of the Chair: 10:17 pm.

Next meeting: June 5th, 2019

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 104 



J>IE SALESMAN
1 AM BUYING OLD collectibles
such as skeleton keys, sports
cards, tokens, wrist and pocket
watches, US and foreign coins,
comic books, costume jewelry,
pocket knives, license plates,
straight razors, wheat pennies,
postcards, military, marbles, fish-
ing lures, thimbles, cow bells,
smoking pipes, etc. 859-749-9943

•MORNING STAR •April 28, 2019
WANT TO BUY: Copies of “Sing-ing News" Magazines. 517-750-

Page 11
-Wanted Miscellaneous-omputers & Equipment -Music- - Small Appliance Repair -

WANTED: Standing TIMBER.
Buying standing hardwood timber.
Quality woodlot management.
Free estimates. Call Clough Cut- ROYAL MONUMENT INC. Home
ting, 517-673-7208

PPER COMPUTER SER-
:E. TuneUps, virus removal,
a recovery, refurbished. Your
iputer will run like brand new,
oklyn, Jackson, Onsted. 517-
-9178

1021GUITAR LESSONS withAaron
Riddle. Intermediate to ad-
vanced. Lessons/performance
techniques. Please text to 734-
368-0500 to set up lessons.

WE CAN FIX ANYTHING
WITH A CORD YOU CAN
CARRY- mixers, power
tools,blenders,microwaves,
lamps, commercial equip-
ment, sewing machines,
Vacuum Cleaner Hospital.
517-787-1533

-Services-
of rock bottom prices and free
in-home consultations. 517-857-
2341WANT TO BUY: Old usable golf

cart. Also 3 point bush hog. Phone
517-849-2425

-Income Tax- DICKERSON Music. Company.
New Extended Hours: Tuesday
- Friday, 10am to 8pm. Saturday,
10am to 3pm. INSTRUMENT
SALES and repairs. Sheet music
and keyboards. 201 N. Supe-
rior, Albion. 517-629-8570. Credit
cards accepted.

NNIE JONES INCOME TAX
RVICE- 27 years experience,
le, personal and small busi-
;s. Michigan Notary Public.
I 517-764-0743.

IT PAYS TO ADVERTISE

-Announcements- LEONI TOWNSHIP NOTICEVENDORS WANTED: Con-
cord Classic Weekend is look-
ing for table vendors for Sat-
urday, June 22, from 10-5 and
Sunday, June 23 from 12-4.
There is no charge to set up
a table, but donations are ac-
cepted. Call Judy at the village
office, 517-524-8534, to be put
on the list.

THE LEONI TOWNSHIP BOARD OF TRUSTEES APPROVED REHABILITATION
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT #21 FOR CLASSIC TURNING, INC. ON JANUARY
17, 1996. THE LEONI TOWNSHIP BOARD OF TRUSTEES WILL HOLD A PUBLIC
HEARING TUESDAY, MAY 14, 2019 IN THE LEONI TOWNSHIP MEETING HALL,
913 FIFTH ST., MICHIGAN CENTER, MICHIGAN AT 6:00 P.M. TO CONSIDER AN
APPLICATION FROM CLASSIC TURNING, INC. FOR AN INDUSTRIAL FACILITIES
EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE.
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:
BEG AT NE COR OF SEC 18, T3S R1E, TH W 888.4 3 FT TH S 37027’W 451.25
FT TO A PT FOR PL OF BEG OF THIS DESCN TH S 38051’3CTE 544.65 FT TH S
81038’ 50”W 389.56 FT TH N 09003’W 355.13 FT TH N 37027’E 163.75 FT TO
BEG. SEC 18 T3S R1E 2.58A •

and
±8.29 ACRES PARCEL (PARCELS 226-001-003', 227-001-02 & 500-001-02
A parcel of land located in the Northeast 1/4 of Section 18, Town 3 South, Range 1
East, Leoni Township, Jackson County, Michigan being described as: Commencing
at the Northeast Corner of Section 18, T3S, R1E; thence N88°47’05”W, 888.10 feet
along the North line of said Section 18 to the centerline of Flansburg Road; thence
S37°38’22”W, 188.88 feet along said centerline to the point of beginning of the follow-
ing described parcel; thence S89°47’05”E, 369.28 feet; thence S00°12’55”W, 672.73
feet to the Northeasterly right-of way line of a former railroad; thence S53°15’32”W,
100.00 feet (recorded as S53°23’27”W) to the Southwesterly right-of way line of a
former railroad; thence Northwesterly, 147.54 feet along said former right-of-way
line along the arc of a curve to the left, said curve having a radius of 5570.82 feet,
a delta angle of 1°31’03”, and a chord bearing N37°29,59,,W, 147.54 feet; thence
SSCfOCMV’W, 408.91 feet (recorded as S79°47,46,,W, 406.11 feet) to the centerline of
East South Street; thence N08°48’50”W, 354.56 feet along said centerline to the cen-
terline of Flansburg Road; thence N37°38’22”E 164.32 feet (recorded as N37025’59”E,
163.92 feet) along said centerline to the Southwesterly right-of way line of a former
railroad; thence Southeasterly, 33.38 feet along said former right-of-way line along the
arc of a curve to the right, said curve having a radius of 5570.82 feet, a delta angle of
0°20’36”, and a chord bearing S43°40’30”E, 33.38 feet;.thence N37°38’22”E, 101.19
feet (recorded as N37°46’17”E, 101.18 feet to the Northeasterly right-of way line of a
former railroad; thence Northwesterly, 33.37 feet along said former right-of-way line
along the arc of a curve to the left, said curve having a radius of 5670.82 feet, a delta
angle of 0°20’14”, and a chord bearing N43°49’45”W, 33.37 feet to the centerline of
Flansburg Road; thence N37e38’22”E, 160.71 feet along said centerline to the point
of beginning; said parcel contains 8.29 acres, more or less; said parcel being subject
to the rights of the public over and across that portion currently being used for road
purposes; said parcel being subject to any easements or restrictions of use or record.

& Antenna Service-
VPP’S TV. ANTENNA, T.V.,
eillance, home theatre. Satel-
3ales and Service. Brooklyn,
•592-2680

Firewood
' FIREWbOD FOR SALE: $55.

delivered. 517-563-0618

.EONI TOWNSHIP NOTICE
he Leoni Township Planning Commission will hold a
'ublic Hearing Wednesday, May 15, 2019 @ 6:30 p.m. in
ie Leoni Township meeting hall, 913 Fifth St., Michigan
tenter, Michigan,
) To add Sport Shooting ranges to Agricultural Zoning as
Conditional Use
) To add Sport Shooting ranges to B4 Zoning as Condi-
onal Use
) To add “any use not otherwise provided for” in the zoning
rdinance to Heavy Industrial as Conditional Use.
) To prohibit future Medical Marihuana grow and process-
}Q facilities in AG Zones, with exception to the currently
xisting local licensees that will be permitted to operate,
ommence operations and/or expand on any real estate
roperty zoned AG on the effective date of the legislation.
) To amend tfie Agricultural Zoning Ordinance to include
s a Conditional Use “Agritourism”
terry Pickett, Clerk

VENDORS WANTED: Wat-
son Diesel Michigan Nationals
Truck & Tractor Pulls is looking
for vendors for Friday, June 21
from 3pm-10pm and Saturday,
June 22 from 10am-10pm. Call
Karie at 517-435-4967 or email
sales@watsondieselservice.
com for more information;Event
will be held at the Calhoun
County Fairgrounds in Marshall,
Michigan.

m
NOTICE: PERSONAL CLASSI-
FIEDS are placed on a cash only
basis. Ads may be phoned in with
payment sent promptly. There is
a $2 fee if billings are sent. THE
SALESMAN, 517-524-8540 517- i
783-4080

EIGHT VERY EXPENSIVE BAS-
KETS stolen from my green
house.Please return them and no
penalty will occur.HAVE CAMER-
AS IN THE GREENHOUSE. Not
opening this year due to illness. Be
back for you all next year, 2020.
Sharon Clark, Rose of Sharon
Country Gardens.

Sandstone Charter Township
LEAN UP DAY

esidents of Sandstone Charter Township will be able to
ace items into garbage trucks that will be parked at the
Dwnship Hall, 7940 County Farm Rd. on

May 4th, 2019 from 9am until 1pm
he following items will be accepted from Sandstone
harter Township residents:

-Boats & Marine-
OUTBOARD MOTOR,1989 20hp
Evinrude, electric start. Complete
controls for pontoon. Lots of ex-
tras. 517-524-8101

12 FT. ROWBOAT with trailer,
oars, anchors, new trolling mo- anH

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 105 



This page is intentionally blank. 

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 106 



  
www.region2planning.com/jackson-county-planning-commission 

 

Jackson County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 

COORDINATED ZONING REPORT | #19-14 

 To: County Planning Commissioners 
 From: Grant E. Bauman 
 Date: June 13, 2019 

 Proposal: ‘Sport Shooting Ranges’ in Leoni Township’s Agricultural District 

The Request and Background Information 

The Leoni Township Planning Commission proposes an amendment to Chapter 42 (Zoning) of the Leoni 
Township Code of Ordinances pertaining to the regulation of Sport Shooting Ranges as a conditional use 
in the Agricultural (AG) District. 

The proposed amendment reads as follows: 

Sec. 42-153. - Agricultural district (AG). 

. . . 

(c) Conditional uses. Each of the following uses shall be permitted upon recommendation by the 
planning commission and authorization by the township board, and subject to such reasonable 
restrictions as may be clearly and specifically set forth in writing by the township board. In every 
such case, the township board shall follow the procedures set forth in section 42-345. 

. . . 

(13) Sport shooting ranges as defined in MCL 691.1541(d) that comply with ‘generally accepted 
operation practices’ as defined in MCL 691.1541(a) as well as other conditions imposed by 
the Township. Any conditional use permit issued by the Township for this use prior to the 
enactment of this paragraph is ratified and re-issued by the Township under identical terms, 
and conditions. 

. . . 

The proposed amendment would: 

 Add Sport Shooting Ranges to the listing of conditional uses in the AG District. 

 Ratify and reissue any conditional use permit issued by the Township for this use prior to the 
enactment of the amendment under identical terms and conditions. 

 Refer to the definition for Sport Shooting Ranges in PA 269 of 1989: 

“Sport shooting range” or “range” means an area designed and operated for the use of 
archery, rifles, shotguns, pistols, silhouettes, skeet, trap, black powder, or any other simi-
lar sport shooting (MCL 691.1541(d)). 

 Require compliance with the ‘generally accepted operation practices’ listed in PA 269 of 1989: 

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 107 



CZC #19-13 Page 2 
 

“Generally accepted operation practices” means those practices adopted by the commis-
sion of natural resources that are established by a nationally recognized nonprofit mem-
bership organization that provides voluntary firearm safety programs that include train-
ing individuals in the safe handling and use of firearms, which practices are developed 
with consideration of all information reasonably available regarding the operation of 
shooting ranges. The generally accepted operation practices shall be reviewed at least 
every 5 years by the commission of natural resources and revised as the commission con-
siders necessary. The commission shall adopt generally accepted operation practices 
within 90 days of the effective date of section 2a (MCL 691.1541(a)). 

The Michigan Department of Natural Resources’ (MDNR’s) ‘generally accepted operation prac-
tices’ are based upon the operating specifications outlined in specific sections, chapters, and ar-
ticles of the National Rifle Association (NRA) Range Source Book, A Guide to Planning & Con-
struction, 2012. Those sections, chapters, and articles are specified in a 3/18/19 MDNR memo 
(‘click’ here to see the memo). The remaining portions of the source book are “considered infor-
mational to the named Sections, Chapters and Articles”. 

The Leoni Township Planning Commission failed to pass a motion on 5/15/19 to: . . . adopt Sport Shoot-
ing Ranges to AG as conditional uses defined in MCL 691.1541d as defined in MCL 691.1514(a) as written 
by attorney (See attached) with additional language added to be: down range only, shooting through a 
window setting from a benched position for long barreled guns and a standing position for hand guns. 
Also, to include surveillance camera monitoring. 

Staff Analysis 

 Does the Township want to consider allowing Indoor Sport Shooting Ranges in the AG District? 
If the intent was to only consider allowing Outdoor Sport Shooting Ranges, Sport Shooting 
Ranges should be changed to Outdoor Sport Shooting Ranges in Sec. 42-153(c)(13). 

 Zoning is not retroactive, as evidenced by the regulation of nonconformities in Sec. 42-347 of 
the Township’s zoning code. Therefore, staff does not think it appropriate to state: Any condi-
tional use permit issued by the Township for this use prior to the enactment of this paragraph is 
ratified and re-issued by the Township under identical terms and conditions. 

 The National Rifle Association (NRA) Range Source Book, A Guide to Planning & Construction, 
2012, is cited as the source for the Sport Shooting Ranges ‘generally accepted operation prac-
tices’ adopted by the Michigan Department of Natural Resources (MDNR). That resource is not 
available online and must be purchased from the NRA. Accordingly, Leoni Township should 
consider obtaining a copy of the source book for reference when considering and administering 
conditional use permits. 

Staff Advisement – Based upon this analysis, staff advises the Jackson County Planning Commission to 
recommend APPROVAL WITH COMMENTS of the amendments regulating Sport Shooting Ranges as a 
conditional use in the AG District to the Leoni Township Board: 

 Change Sport Shooting Ranges to Outdoor Sport Shooting 
Ranges in Sec. 42-153(c)(13) if the intent was not to include 
Indoor Sport Shooting Ranges. 

 The JCPC does not think it appropriate to state: Any condi-
tional use permit issued by the Township for this use prior to 

Suggested Actions: 

(1) Recommend APPROVAL 
(2) Recommend DISAPPROVAL 
(3) Recommend APPROVAL 

WITH COMMENTS 
(4) Take NO ACTION 

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 108 

https://www.michigan.gov/documents/dnr/Generally_Accepted_Operation_Practices_for_Sport_Shooting_Ranges_2019_652432_7.pdf


CZC #19-13 Page 3 
 

the enactment of this paragraph is ratified and re-issued by the Township under identical terms 
and conditions in Sec. 42-153(c)(13). 

 Leoni Township should consider obtaining a copy of the National Rifle Association (NRA) Range 
Source Book, A Guide to Planning & Construction, 2012, for reference. 

Staff Report Attachment(s): 

 Background information provided by Leoni Township 

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 109 



JCPC Case-#:
(For JCPC Use Only) ZONING AMENDMENT FORM

JACKSON COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION
(COORDINATING ZONING)

Return to:Jackson County Planning Commission •c/o Region 2 Planning Commission •120 W. Michigan Avenue •Jackson,Michigan 49201
Please submit the Planning Commission meeting minutes and any reports/exhibits the Commission used to makes its recommendation with thisform. Use
a separateformfor each proposed zoning change. Please include a legal description/ survey with rezoning requests in addition to the Parcel!D Number.
A copy of thisform with the JCPC recommendation will be mailed back to the Clerk, who will return a copy to theJCPC with the Township Board Action.

orvvTHE
County Planning Commission for its review,comment, and recommendation:

TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION submits the following proposed zoning change to the Jackson

(ANSWER EITHER A or B)
A. DISTRICT BOUNDARY CHANGE (REZONING):

(Provide the legal and popular property descriptions, the Parcel ID Number(s), the number of acres, and the section(s) in which the
property is located. Attach additional sheets if more space is needed. Attach a map showing all changes and additions.)

1. The above described property has a proposed zoning change FROM
ZONE TO ) ZONE.

2. PURPOSE OF PROPOSED CHANGE:

B. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT:
The following Article(s) and Section(s) is amended or altered: ARTICLE
The NEW SECTION reads as follows: (Attach additional sheets if more space is needed.)

<-ia- )53SECTION

day ^ ao \qyy\6UA
D. NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING was published/mailed on the following date: month

(Notice must be provided at leastfifteen days prior to the public hearing.)
E. THE NEWSPAPER (having general circulation in Township) carrying the NOTICE: VY\c~ir\

C. PUBLIC HEARING on the above amendment was held on: month year
day T-QPy>*r \\ year2otcj

The PROPOSED ZONING AMENDMENT described herein was duly considered by the Township Planning Commission and will be
forwarded to the Township Board with a recommendation to.[Ĵ APIPROVE or j<^|DISAPPROVE.

^ \A ^ F^fChair or Q Secretary 5"
/ /^ / 2.0^ (enter date)s p/.K C t’ A

JACKSON COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION (JCPC) ACTION:
1. Date of Meeting: month day year
2. The JCPC herewith certifies receipt of the proposed amendment on the above date and:

I | Recommends APPROVAL of the zoning change

I I Recommends DISAPPROVAL of the zoning change for the reasons stated in the attached letter.
I I Recommends APPROVAL of the zoning change with comments, as stated in the attached letter.

Takes NO ACTION.
(enter date),Recording Secretary

TOWNSHIP BOARD ACTION:
1. Date of Meeting: month
2. The

day year
Township Board herewith certifies that a legally constituted meeting held on the above date and that

the proposed amendment Q PASSED,Q DID NOT PASS,or was Q REFERRED ANEW to the Township Planning Commission.

Township Clerk
Revised: 12/19/14

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 110 



Exhibit B

To Jackson County Planning Commission

1.) Proposed text amendment to AG zoning to allow sport shooting
ranges as conditional use

2.) Leoni Township Planning Commission meeting minutes of 5-15-19

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 111 



Resolved, the Township of Leoni Board refers to the Planning Commission for recommendation,
the following amendment to the zoning ordinance:

Sec. 42-153 of the Code of Ordinances is amended as follows:

Add to subsection (c) subparagraph (13) to read as follows:

(13) Sport shooting ranges as defined in MCL 691.1541(d) that comply with 'generally
accepted operation practices’ as defined in MCL 691.1541(a) and that comply with other conditions
imposed by the Township. Any conditional use permit issued by the Township for this use prior to
the enactment of this paragraph is ratified and re-issued by the Township under identical terms and
conditions.

After amendment, Sec. 42-153 shall read:

Sec. 42-153. - Agricultural district (AG).

(a) Purpose. The agricultural district is composed of areas of the township suited to agricultural
land use. The regulations governing this district are designed to retain and preserve farmland
and farm dwellings, while providing transition from open space areas and rural nonfarm
residences.

(b) Permitted uses. Permitted uses are as follows:

(1) Agriculture and the usual agricultural buildings and structures, including processing of
agricultural products but not including commercial slaughtering.

(2) Dwelling, one-family detached, subject to the provisions of section 42-352.

(3) Farming, general and specialized, including nurseries, greenhouses, truck gardening,
poultry raising, beekeeping and similar bona fide agricultural enterprises or uses of land
and structures, providing sale of products shall be limited to those grown on the
premises. No commercial slaughtering is permitted.

(4) Any accessory use or structure clearly incidental and customary to the operation of the
uses listed in this subsection.

(5) Signs permitted under the provisions of section 42-342.

(c) Conditional uses. Each of the following uses shall be permitted upon recommendation by
the planning commission and authorization by the township board, and subject to such
reasonable restrictions as may be clearly and specifically set forth in writing by the township
board. In every such case, the township board shall follow the procedures set forth in
section 42-345.

(1) The raising of domestic animals, fowl and for-beating animals (other than farm livestock) for
commercial purposes, provided that any structure, pens and yards in which animals or fowl

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 112 



ate kept shaE be located not less than 200 feet from any residence located on any other lot or
premises.

(2) Livestock auction yards and structures, provided that:

a. Written'consent of 80 percent of aU owners of property is obtained.\yithin 500
feet of any part of the lot on which it is to be located.

b. No yards or structures shaU be located less than 500 feet from any R district or
any dweUing.

(3) Quarries. See section 42-345(9)a.

(4) Portable asphalt plants.Such plant may be operated in any existing gravel pit in the township
in a temporary basis after obtaining approval of the township board, provided such plant is
not less than 1,000 feet from any R district, and provided that such use must be discontinued
if the township board determines that the use has become a pubHc nuisance.

(5) Aircraft landing fields or airports, provided that the parcel or tract of land is sufficiently large
so as not to create a noise or safety hazard to adjacent or nearby property owners or their
property.

(6) Permitted home occupations, subject to the provisions of section 42-355.

(7) Off-site sludge storage facilities and lagoon or water reservoirs.

(8) Churches, provided they are located at least 50 feet from aU adjacent property lines.

(9) Commercial kennels for the raising, breeding and boarding of dogs and other smaE animals,
and including office of a veterinarian, provided that aE buddings and runs shaE be at least
200 feet from aE adjacent property lines.

(10) Riding stables and academies, provided that aE buildings shaE be at least 200 feet
from ail adjacent property lines and further provided that adequate bridle paths shaE be
made available either on private property or on nearby pubEc lands.

(ii) Roadside market stands, provided that any structure used for such purposes shaE be
located not less than 30 feet distance from the road right-of-way boundary line and have
adequate off-road parking.

(12) Essential services (see section 42-345).

(13) Sport shooting ranges as defined in MCL 691.1541(d) that comply with ‘generaHy
accepted operation practices’as defined in MCL 691.1541(a) as weE as other conditions
imposed by the Township. Any conditional use permit issued by the Township for this use
prior to the enactment of this paragraph is ratified and re-issued by the Township under
identical terms, and conditions.

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 113 



Leoni Township Office
913 Fifth Street

Michigan Center, Michigan 49254
PHONE: (517) 764-4694 FAX: (517) 764-1380

Leonitownship.com

PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES
May 15, 2019

The Leoni Township Planning Commission held a meeting Wednesday, May 15, 2019 @ 6:30 p.m. 913
Fifth Street, Leoni Township Meeting Hall, Michigan Center, Michigan.

Meeting opened to call of the Chair: 6:32 pm

Members Present: V. Beckwith, J. Spencer, L. Maurer, J. Southworth, K. Cole, & B. Lester

Members absent:
Persons in attendance: 32

D. Helmlinger

Purpose of Planning Commission read by Spencer

Motion by Beckwith, supported by Maurer, to amend the agenda as follows: Under New business #2
wording from “Sport Shooting Ranges” change to “Indoor Sport Shooting Ranges” which would be B4
Zoning also, new business #4 from’’any” real estate property zoned AG to “its existing” real estate
property zoned AG.
Roll Call Vote 5 Yays

1 Nay
BeckM’ith, Lester, Southworth, Spencer & Maurer
Cole

Motion carried.

Motion by Cole, supported by Spencer to approve the minutes of April 17, 2019 with correction to page 1
Ann Arbor Rd. changed to Page Ave.

Public Comment: Open at
Closed at

6:32 pm.
7:10 pm.

Old Business: 1) Discussion of Opting in/out of Recreational Marihuana Businesses.
Need a public hearing before discussing.

New Business: 1) Amend Zoning Ordinance to add Sport Shooting Ranges to
AG as Conditional Use.

Motion by Spencer, supported by Cole to adopt Sport Shooting Ranges to AG as conditional uses
defined in MCL691.1541d as defined in MC.L691.1514(a)as written by attorney (See attached)
with additional language added to be: down range only, shooting through a window setting from
a benched position for long barreled guns and a standing position for hand guns. Also, to
include surveillance camera monitoring.
Roll call Vote 3 Yays

3 Nays
Beckwith, Spencer, & Lester
Maurer, Cole & Southworth

Motion Failed

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 114 



2) Amend the Zoning Ordinance to Add “Indoor Sport Shooting Ranges” to B4 Zoning as
Conditional Uses
Motion by Spencer supported by Beckwith to add Indoor Sport Shooting Range in B4 to paragraph 10 of
zoning ordinance as written by attorney (See attached).

5 Yays
1 Nay

Roll Call Vote Beckwith, Spencer, Maurer, Lester & Southworth
Cole

Motion carried.

Public Comment: Open at 8:33 pm.
Closed at 8:33 pm.

3) Amend the Zoning Ordinance to Add “any use not otherwise provided for” in the zoning
ordinance for Heavy Industrial as Conditional Uses.
Motion by Spencer, supported by Cole to amend any use not provided for in Heavy Industrial
as conditional uses as written by attorney. (See attached.)
Roll Call Vote: 6 Yays

0 Nays
Beckv\>ith, Lester, Cole, Southworth, Spencer & Maurer

Motion carried.

4) Amend the Zoning Ordinance to “prohibit future Medical Marihuana grow and
processing facilities in AG Zones, with exception to the currently existing local licensees
that will be permitted to operate, commence operations and/or expand on any real estate
property zoned AG on the effective date of the legislation.
Motion by Spencer, supported by Beckwith to amend zoning ordinance to prohibit future MM
grow & processing facilities in AG Zones, with exception to the currently existing local licensees
that will be permitted to operate, commence operations and/or expand to its existing real estate
property zoned AG on the effective date of the legislation.
Roll Call Vote: 6 Yays

0 Nays
Beckwith, Lester, Cole, Southworth, Spencer & Maurer.

Motion carried.

Public Comment: Open at 9:00 pm.
Closed at 9:17 pm.

5) To amend the Agricultural Zoning Ordinance to include as a Conditional Use
“Agritourism”.
Motion by Spencer, supported by Cole to table and submit to attorney for recommendation to
amend the AG zoning ordinance to include as a conditional use Agritourism.

Public Comment: Open at
Closed at

10:08 pm.
10:15 pm.

Adjourn to the call of the Chair: 10:17 pm.

Next meeting: June 5th, 2019

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 115 



Page 11 •MORNING STAR •April 28, 2019 •THE SALESMAN
I AM BUYINGOLD

"coilectTbles
such as skeleton keys, sports
cards, tokens, wrist and pocket
watches, US and foreign coins,
comic books, costume jewelry,
pocket knives, license plates,
straight razors, wheat pennies,
postcards, military, marbles, fish-
ing lures, thimbles, cow bells,
smoking pipes, etc. 859-749-9943

WANT TO BUY: Copies of “Sing-
ing News” Magazines. 517-750-

-Wanted Miscellaneous-Computers & Equipment -Music- - Small Appliance Repair -
WANTED: Standing TIMBER.
Buying standing hardwood timber.
Quality woodlot management.
Free estimates. Call Clough Cut- ROYAL MONUMENT INC. Home
ting, 517-673-7208

TAPPER COMPUTER SER-
/ICE. TuneUps, virus removal,
lata recovery, refurbished. Your
:omputer will run like brand new,
Brooklyn, Jackson, Onsted. 517-
167-9178

1021GUITAR LESSONS with Aaron
Riddle. Intermediate to ad-
vanced. Lessons/performance
techniques. Please text to 734-
368-0500 to set up lessons.

WE CAN FIX ANYTHING
WITH A CORD YOU CAN
CARRY- mixers, power
tools, blenders, microwaves,
lamps, commercial equip-
ment, sewi-ng machines,
Vacuum Cleaner Hospital.
517-787-1533

-Services-

of rock bottom prices and free
in-home consultations. 517-857-
2341WANT TO BUY: Old usable golf

cart. Also 3 point bush hog. Phone
517-849-2425

-Income Tax- DICKERSON Music. Company.
New Extended Hours: Tuesday
- Friday, 10am to 8pm. Saturday,
10am to 3pm. INSTRUMENT
SALES and repairs. Sheet music
and keyboards. 201 N. Supe-
rior, Albion. 517-629-8570. Credit
cards accepted.

30NNIE JONES INCOME TAX
SERVICE- 27 years experience.
E-file, personal and small busi-
less. Michigan Notary Public.
;all 517-764-0743.

IT PAYS TO ADVERTISE

-Announcements- LEONI TOWNSHIP NOTICEVENDORS WANTED: Con-
cord Classic Weekend is look-
ing for table vendors for Sat-
urday, June 22, from 10-5 and
Sunday, June 23 from 12-4.
There is no charge to set up
a table, but donations are ac-
cepted. Call Judy at the village
office, 517-524-8534, to be put
on the list. :

THE LEONI TOWNSHIP BOARD OF TRUSTEES APPROVED REHABILITATION
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT #21 FOR CLASSIC TURNING, INC. ON JANUARY
17, 1996. THE LEONI TOWNSHIP BOARD OF TRUSTEES WILL HOLD A PUBLIC
HEARING TUESDAY, MAY 14, 2019 IN THE LEONI TOWNSHIP MEETING HALL,
913 FIFTH ST., MICHIGAN CENTER, MICHIGAN AT 6:00 P.M. TO CONSIDER AN
APPLICATION FROM CLASSIC TURNING, INC. FOR AN INDUSTRIAL FACILITIES
EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE.
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:
BEG AT NE COR OF SEC 18, T3S R1E, TH W 888.T 3 FT TH S 37027’W 451.25
FT TO A PT FOR PL OF BEG OF THIS DESCN TH S 38051’3CTE 544.65 FT TH S
81038’ 50”W 389.56 FT TH N 09003’W 355.13 FT TH N 37027’E 163.75 FT TO
BEG. SEC 18 T3S R1E 2.58A •

and
±8.29 ACRES PARCEL (PARCELS 226-001-003', 227-001-02 & 500-001-02
A parcel of land located in the Northeast 1/4 of Section 18, Town 3 South, Range 1
East, Leoni Township, Jackson County, Michigan being described as: Commencing
at the Northeast Corner of Section 18, T3S, R1E; thence N88°47’05”W, 888.10 feet
along the North line of said Section 18 to the centerline of Flansburg Road; thence
S37°38’22”W, 188.88 feet along said centerline to the point of beginning of the follow-
ing described parcel; thence S89°47’05”E, 369.28 feet; thence S00o12’55”W, 672.73
feet to the Northeasterly right-of way line of a former railroad; thence S53°15’32”W,
100.00 feet (recorded as S53°23’27”W) to the Southwesterly right-of way line of a
former railroad; thence Northwesterly, 147.54 feet along said former right-of-way
line along the arc of a curve to the left, said curve having a radius of 5570.82 feet,
a delta angle of 1°3T03”, and a chord bearing N37°29’59”W, 147.54 feet; thence
S80°00’41”W, 408.91 feet (recorded as' S79°47’46”W, 406.11 feet) to the centerline of
East South Street; thence N08°48,50”W, 354.56 feet along said centerline to the cen-
terline of Flansburg Road; thence N37°38’22”E 164.32 feet (recorded as N37’25’59”E,
163.92 feet) along said centerline to the Southwesterly right-of way line of a former
railroad; thence Southeasterly, 33.38 feet along said former right-of-way line along the
arc of a curve to the right, said curve having a radius of 5570.82 feet, a delta angle of
0°20’36”, and a chord bearing S43°40’30”E, 33.38 feet; thence N37°38’22”E, 101.19
feet (recorded as N37°46’17”E, 101.18 feet to the Northeasterly right-of way line of a
former railroad; thence Northwesterly, 33.37 feet along said former right-of-way line
along the arc of a curve to the left, said curve having a radius of 5670.82 feet, a delta
angle of 0#20’14”, and a chord bearing N43°49’45”W, 33.37 feet to the centerline of
Flansburg Road; thence N37’38’22”E, 160.71 feet along said centerline to the point
of beginning; said parcel contains 8.29 acres, more or less; said parcel being subject
to the rights of the public over and across that portion currently being used for road
purposes; said parcel being subject to any easements or restrictions of use or record.

-TV & Antenna Service-
:NAPP S TV.- ANTENNA, T.V.,
urveillance, home theatre. Satel-
le Sales and Service. Brooklyn,
17-592-2680'

Firewood
FIREWbOD FOR SALE: $55.
delivered. 517-563-0618

LEONI TOWNSHIP NOTICE
%The Leoni Township Planning Commission will hold a

Public Hearing Wednesday, May 15, 2019 @ 6:30 p.m. in
the Leoni Township meeting hall, 913 Fifth St., Michigan
Center, Michigan, '

^ m
1) To add Sport Shooting ranges to Agricultural Zoning as
Conditional Use
2) To add Sport Shooting ranges to B4 Zoning as Condi-
tional Use
3) To add “any use not otherwise provided for” in the zoning
ordinance to Heavy Industrial as Conditional Use.
4) To prohibit future Medical Marihuana grow and process-
ing facilities in AG Zones, with exception to the currently
existing local licensees that will be permitted to operate,
commence operations and/or expand on any real estate
property zoned AG on the effective date of the legislation.
5) To amend tfie Agricultural Zoning Ordinance to include
as a Conditional Use “Agritourism”
Kerry Pickett, Clerk

VENDORS WANTED: Wat-
son Diesel Michigan Nationals
Truck & Tractor Pulls is looking
for vendors for Friday, June 21
from 3pm-10pm and Saturday,
June 22 from 10am-10pm. Call
Karie at 517-435-4967 or email
sales@watsondieselservice:
com for more information:Event
will be held at the Calhoun
County Fairgrounds in Marshall,
Michigan.

NOTICE: PERSONAL CLASSI-
FIEDS are placed on a cash only
basis. Ads may be phoned in with
payment, sent promptly. There is
a $2 fee if billings are sent. THE ;

SALESMAN, 517-524-8540 517- i
783-4080

EIGHT VERY EXPENSIVE BAS-
KETS stolen from my green
house.Please return them and no j
penalty will occur.HAVECAMER-
AS IN THE GREENHOUSE. Not
opening this year due to illness. Be
back for you all next year, 2020.
Sharon Clark, Rose of Sharon
Country Gardens.

Sandstone Charter Township
CLEAN UP DAY
Residents of Sandstone Charter Township will be able to
place items into garbage trucks that will be parked at the
Township Hall, 7940 County Farm Rd. on

May 4th, 2019 from 9am until 1pm
The following items will be accepted from Sandstone
Charter Township residents:

-Boats & Marine-
OUTBOARD MOTOR,1989 20hp
Evinrude, electric start. Complete
controls for pontoon. Lots of ex-
tras. 517-524-8101

12 FT. ROWBOAT with trailer,
oars, anchors, new trolling mo- i

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 116 



  
www.region2planning.com/jackson-county-planning-commission 

 

Jackson County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 

COORDINATED ZONING REPORT | #19-15 

 To: County Planning Commissioners 
 From: Grant E. Bauman 
 Date: June 13, 2019 

 Proposal: ‘Any use not otherwise provided for in the zoning ordinance’  
in Leoni Township’s Heavy Industrial District 

The Request and Background Information 

The Leoni Township Planning Commission proposes an amendment to Chapter 42 (Zoning) of the Leoni 
Township Code of Ordinances pertaining to the regulation of any use not otherwise provided for in the 
zoning ordinance of the Township as a conditional use in the Heavy Industrial (M) District. 

The proposed amendment reads as follows: 

Sec. 42- 243. - Heavy industrial district (M). 

. . . 

(c) Conditional uses. Conditional uses are as follows: 

. . . 

(22) Any use not otherwise provided for in the zoning ordinance of the Township. 

. . . 

The proposed amendment would: 

 Allow any use not otherwise provided for in the zoning ordinance of the Township as a condi-
tional use in the M District. 

The Leoni Township Planning Commission passed a motion on 5/15/19 to: . . . add “any use not other-
wise provided for” in the zoning ordinance for Heavy Industrial as Conditional Uses. 

Staff Analysis 

 Sec. 504(3) of the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act (MZEA) (MCL 125.3504(3)) states: A request for 
approval of a land use or activity shall be approved if the request is in compliance with the 
standards stated in the zoning ordinance, the conditions imposed under the zoning ordinance, 
other applicable ordinances, and state and federal statutes (emphasis added). This means that 
in the Heavy Industrial (M) District, the Township would have to issue a conditional use permit 
for any use not listed elsewhere in the zoning ordinance as long as it was in compliance with 

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 117 



CZC #19-15 Page 2 
 

ordinance standards and any conditions imposed by the Township. Consequently, the Town-
ship would have to issue a conditional permit for a use not listed elsewhere in the zoning ordi-
nance even if it felt it was not appropriate for the M District. 

Staff Advisement – Based upon this analysis, staff advises the 
Jackson County Planning Commission to recommend DISAP-
PROVAL of the amendment regulating any use not otherwise pro-
vided for in the zoning ordinance of the Township as a condi-
tional use in the M District to the Leoni Township Board, for the 
following reason: 

 Per the MZEA, the Township would have to issue a condi-
tional permit for a use not listed elsewhere in the zoning 
ordinance even if the Township felt that it was not ap-
propriate for the M District. 

Staff Report Attachment(s): 

 Background information provided by Leoni Township 

Suggested Actions: 

(1) Recommend APPROVAL 
(2) Recommend DISAPPROVAL 
(3) Recommend APPROVAL 

WITH COMMENTS 
(4) Take NO ACTION 

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 118 



JCPC Case #:
(ForJCPCUse Only)

i /

ZONING AMENDMENT FORM

JACKSON COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION
(COORDINATING ZONING)

Return to: Jackson County Planning Commission •c/o Region 2 Planning Commission •120 W. Michigan Avenue •Jackson,Michigan 49201
Please submit the Planning Commission meeting minutes and any reports/exhibits the Commission used to makes its recommendation with thisform. Use
a separateformfor each proposed zoning change. Please include a legal description/ survey with rezoning requests in addition to the Parcel ID Number.
A copy of thisform with the JCPC recommendation will be mailed back to the Clerk,who will return a copy to theJCPC with the Township Board Action.

OJCLTHE
County Planning Commission for its review,comment, and recommendation:

TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION submits the following proposed zoning change to the JacksonA.

(ANSWER EITHER A or B)
A. DISTRICT BOUNDARY CHANGE (REZONING):

(Provide the legal and popular property descriptions, the Parcel ID Number(s), the number of acres, and the section(s) in which the
property is located. Attach additional sheets if more space is needed. Attach a map showing all changes and additions.)

1. The above described property has a proposed zoning change FROM
ZONE TO ) ZONE.

2. PURPOSE OF PROPOSED CHANGE:

B. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT:
The following Article(s) and Section(s) is amended or altered: ARTICLE
The NEW SECTION reads as follows: (Attach additional sheets if more space is needed.)

Ar ^WCJXCLA Vi>biiL_C
SECTION

dayC. PUBLIC HEARING on the above amendment was held on: month
D. NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING was published/mailed on the following date: month

year
day vear^JD

(Notice must be provided at leastfifteen days prior to the public hearing.)
E. THE NEWSPAPER (having general circulation in Township ) carrying the NOTICE:

The PROPOSED ZONING AMENDMENT described herein was duly considered by the Township Planning Commission and will be
forwarded to the Township Board with a recommendation to [^APPROVE or Q DISAPPROVE.

[^Chair or Q Secretary / Zo\°|(enter date)
JACKSON COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION (JCPC) ACTION:

1. Date of Meeting: month day year
2. The JCPC herewith certifies receipt of the proposed amendment on the above date and:

I |Recommends APPROVAL of the zoning change

I I Recommends DISAPPROVAL of the zoning change for the reasons stated in the attached letter.
I I Recommends APPROVAL of the zoning change with comments, as stated in the attached letter.

Takes NO ACTION.
(enter date),Recording Secretary

TOWNSHIP BOARD ACTION:
1. Date of Meeting: month
2. The

day year
Township Board herewith certifies that a legally constituted meeting held on the above date and that

the proposed amendment\^\ PASSED,Q DID NOT PASS, or was Q REFERRED ANEW to the Township Planning Commission.

Township Clerk
Revised: 12/19/14

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 119 



Exhibit C

To Jackson County Planning Commission

1.) Proposed text amendment to Hvy Ind zoning to allow - Any use not
otherwise provided for in the zoning ordinance of the Township

2.) Leoni Township Planning Commission meeting minutes of 5-15-19

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 120 



Section 42-243, Paragraph c, is amended to add sub-paragraph (22) as follows:

IMf^s t̂saia^p âea^
When amended, the entire Section will read:

(1) Alkali plants, manufacture.

(2) Asphalt plants.
(3) Automobile wrecking and salvage yards. The owner, lessee or user of premises storing

vehicles or chassis shall apply to the township board for authorization for such storage.Such
authorization may be granted subject to reasonable regulations protecting the public health,
safety and welfare, including but not limited to sufficient lot size and screening of stored
vehicles from the public.

(4) Building materials salvage yard.

(5) Bulk storage of explosives.
(6) Cement manufacture and concrete mixing operations.

(7) Fertilizer manufacture.

(8) Gravel and rock crushing operations.
(9) ‘Gypsum and other forms of plaster base manufacture.

Incinerators or reduction of garbage, refuse, bones, offal or dead animals.

Junkyard- The township board authorization shall only be granted after full
compliance with chapter 28, article III, dealing with the licensing and regulation of
junkyards.Any township board authorization shall be conditioned upon continued
compliance with the provisions of chapter 28, article HI.

Meat slaughtering.

(10)

(11)

(12)

(13) Sanitary landfill and/or dump.
(14) Stockyards and livestock auction yards.

Storage of liquid petroleum gas, 500 gallons or over.(15)

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 121 



(16) Storage of flammable liquids, 3,000 gallons or over.

(17) Any other industrial use which is determined by the township board to be of the
same general character or similar nature as the uses listed in this subsection and not
prohibited by any other law or ordinance, provided application is made to the township
board and a permit is issued for the operation thereof subject to section 42-348 and other
limitations as follows:

a. Every structure or premises used for such purposes shall be located not less than 500
feet from any R, AG or B district

b. Every structure or premises used for such purposes shall be located not less than 100
feet from any enumerated uses in subsections (b)(1), (2), (3), and (4) of this section.

c. The township board may prescribe such additional limitations as are in its opinion
necessary to secure the objectives of this chapter.

Automobile storage yards.These premises shall be used for the storage of vehicles
bearing a current license plate as of the time the vehicle is placed upon the premises, and
shall not be used for the stripping, salvaging, scavenging, or dismantling of vehicles or
vehicle parts.The sale of junked vehicles, which are vehicles that have been wrecked or
salvaged and are inoperative or obsolete, at the site of an automobile storage yard must be
conducted within the screened portion of the lot The sale of used vehicles, which are
vehicles that bear a current license plate as of the time the vehicle is placed upon the
premises and vehicles in an operative condition, at the site of an automobile storage yard can
be conducted anywhere within the screened portion of the lot or outside the screened
portion of the lot in the front yard only.

(19) —- —Recreational vehicle storage-yards; * • - —* —. *• - • -
a. These premises shall be used for the storage of recreational vehicles bearing a

current license plate as of the time the vehicle is placed upon the premises, as
well as maintaining a current plate and registration with the state during the full
length of storage.

b. All vehicles in storage must be contained inside of a minimum six-foot privacy
fence.

(18)

•• • •.

c. The sale of junked vehicles, or used vehicle parts,wrecked or salvage, and/or
inoperative or obsolete vehicles, at the site of a recreational vehicle storage yard
is prohibited.

d. The fundamental purpose of this subsection is to promote public health, safety,
and general welfare by allowing storage of recreational vehicles in certain areas
for the people of the township, and to prohibit and limit the storage of
inoperable motor vehicles.

Light industrial use.(20)

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 122 



(21) Telecommunications towers.

not ottartvise provides for in ths •«iimng ordinance ol the TowAslup!

(d) Area, yard, height*and bulk regulations.See section 42-271.

•

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 123 



Leoni Township Office
913 Fifth Street

Michigan Center, Michigan 49254
PHONE: (517) 764-4694 FAX: (517) 764-1380

Leonitownship.com

PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES
May 15, 2019 l .

The Leoni Township Planning Commission held a meeting Wednesday, May 15, 2019 @ 6:30 p.m. 913
Fifth Street, Leoni Township Meeting Hall, Michigan Center, Michigan.

Meeting opened to call of the Chair: 6:32 pm

Members Present: V. Beckwith, J. Spencer, L. Maurer, J. Southworth, K. Cole, & B. Lester

Members absent:
Persons in attendance: 32

D. Helmlinger

Purpose of Planning Commission read by Spencer

Motion by BeckM’ith, supported by Maurer, to amend the agenda as follows: Under New business #2
wording from “Sport Shooting Ranges ” change to “Indoor Sport Shooting Ranges” which would be B4
Zoning also, new business #4 from”any" real estate property zoned AG to “its existing” real estate
property zoned AG.
Roll Call Vote BeckM’ith, Lester, Southworth, Spencer & Maurer

Cole
Motion carried.

5 Yays
1 Nay

Motion by Cole, supported by Spencer to approve the minutes of April 17, 2019 with correction to page 1
Ann Arbor Rd. changed to Page Ave.

Public Comment: Open at
Closed at

6:32 pm.
7:10 pm.

Old Business: 1) Discussion of Opting in/out of Recreational Marihuana Businesses.
Need a public hearing before discussing.

New Business: 1) Amend Zoning Ordinance to add Sport Shooting Ranges to
AG as Conditional Use.

Motion by Spencer, supported by Cole to adopt Sport Shooting Ranges to AG as conditional uses
defined in MCL691.1541d as defined in MCL691.1514(a)as written by attorney (See attached)
with additional language added to be: down range only, shooting through a window setting from
a benched position for long barreled guns and a standing position for hand guns. Also, to
include surveillance camera monitoring.

3 Yays
3 Nays

Roll call Vote Beckwith, Spencer, & Lester
Maurer, Cole & Southworth

Motion Failed

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 124 



2) Amend the Zoning Ordinance to Add “Indoor Sport Shooting Ranges” to B4 Zoning as
Conditional Uses
Motion by Spencer supported by Beckwith to add Indoor Sport Shooting Range in B4 to paragraph 10 of
zoning ordinance as written by attorney (See attached).

5 Yays
1 Nay

Roll Call Vote Beckwith, Spencer, Maurer, Lester & Southworth
Cole

Motion carried.

Public Comment: Open at 8:33 pm.
Closed at 8:33 pm.

3) Amend the Zoning Ordinance to Add “any use not otherwise provided for” in the zoning
ordinance for Heavy Industrial as Conditional Uses.
Motion by Spencer, supported by Cole to amend any use not provided for in Heavy Industrial
as conditional uses as written by attorney. (See attached.)
Roll Call Vote: 6 Yays

0 Nays
Beckwith, Lester, Cole, Southworth, Spencer & Maurer

Motion carried.

4) Amend the Zoning Ordinance to “prohibit future Medical Marihuana grow and
processing facilities in AG Zones, with exception to the currently existing local licensees
that will be permitted to operate, commence operations and/or expand on any real estate
property zoned AG on the effective date of the legislation.
Motion by Spencer, supported by Beckwnth to amend zoning ordinance to prohibit future MM
grow & processing facilities in AG Zones, with exception to the currently existing local licensees
that will be permitted to operate, commence operations and/or expand to its existing real estate
property zoned AG on the effective date of the legislation.
Roll Call Vote: 6 Yays

0 Nays
Beckwnth, Lester, Cole, Southworth, Spencer & Maurer.

Motion carried.

Public Comment: Open at 9:00 pm.
Closed at 9:17 pm.

5) To amend the Agricultural Zoning Ordinance to include as a Conditional Use
“Agritourism”.
Motion by Spencer, supported by Cole to table and submit to attorney for recommendation to
amend the AG zoning ordinance to include as a conditional use Agritourism.

Public Comment: Open at
Closed at

10:08 pm.
10:15 pm.

Adjourn to the call of the Chair: 10:17 pm.

Next meeting: June 5th, 2019

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 125 



Page 11 •MORNING STAR •April 28, 2019 •THE SALESMAN
WANT TO BUY: Copies of “Sing-
ing News" Magazines. 517-750-
1021

-Wanted Miscellaneous-mputers & Equipment I AM BUYING OLD collectibles
such as skeleton keys, sports
cards, tokens, wrist and pocket
watches, US and foreign coins,
comic books, costume jewelry,
pocket knives, license plates,
straight razors, wheat pennies,
postcards, military, marbles, fish-
ing lures, thimbles, cow bells,
smoking pipes, etc. 859-749-9943

-Music- - Small Appliance Repair -
WANTED: Standing TIMBER.
Buying standing hardwood timber.
Quality woodlot management.
Free estimates. Call Clough Cut- ROYAL MONUMENT INC. Home
ting, 517-673-7208

’PER COMPUTER SER-
E. TuneUps, virus removal,
recovery, refurbished. Your

puter will run like brand new,
•klyn, Jackson, Onsted. 517-
9178

GUITAR LESSONS with Aaron
Riddle. Intermediate to ad-
vanced. Lessons/performance
techniques.Please text to 734-
368-0500 to set up lessons.

WE CAN FIX ANYTHING
WITH A CORD YOU CAN
CARRY- mixers, power
tools, blenders, microwaves,
lamps, commercial equip-
ment, sewing machines,
Vacuum Cleaner Hospital.
517-787-1533

-Services-

of rock bottom prices and free
in-home consultations. 517-857-
2341WANT TO BUY: Old usable golf

cart.Also 3 point bush hog. Phone
517-849-2425

-Income Tax- DICKERSON Music. Company.
New Extended Hours: Tuesday
- Friday, 10am to 8pm. Saturday,
10am to 3pm. INSTRUMENT
SALES and repairs. Sheet music
and keyboards. 201 N. Supe-
rior, Albion. 517-629-8570. Credit
cards accepted.

JNIE JONES INCOME TAX
VICE- 27 years experience,

e, personal and small busi-
>. Michigan Notary Public.
517-764-0743.

IT PAYS TO ADVERTISE

-Announcements- LEONI TOWNSHIP NOTICEVENDORS WANTED: Con-
cord Classic Weekend is look-
ing for table vendors for Sat-
urday, June 22, from 10-5 and
Sunday, June 23 from 12-4.
There is no charge to set up
a table, but donations are ac-
cepted. Call Judy at the village
office, 517-524-8534, to be put
on the list.

THE LEONI TOWNSHIP BOARD OF TRUSTEES APPROVED REHABILITATION
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT #21 FOR CLASSIC TURNING, INC. ON JANUARY
17, 1996. THE LEONI TOWNSHIP BOARD OF TRUSTEES WILL HOLD A PUBLIC
HEARING TUESDAY, MAY 14, 2019 IN THE LEONI TOWNSHIP MEETING HALL,
913 FIFTH ST., MICHIGAN CENTER, MICHIGAN AT 6:00 P.M. TO CONSIDER AN
APPLICATION FROM CLASSIC TURNING, INC. FOR AN INDUSTRIAL FACILITIES
EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE.
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:
BEG AT NE COR OF SEC 18, T3S R1E, TH W 888/13 FT TH S 37027’W 451.25
FT TO A PT FOR PL OF BEG OF THIS DESCN TH S 38051’30”E 544.65 FT TH S
81038’ 50”W 389.56 FT TH N 09003’W 355.13 FT TH N 37027’E 163.75 FT TO
BEG. SEC 18 T3S R1E 2.58A
and
±8.29 ACRES PARCEL (PARCELS 226-001-003', 227-001-02 & 500-001-02
A parcel of land located in the Northeast 1/4 of Section 18, Town 3 South, Range 1
East, Leoni Township, Jackson County, Michigan being described as: Commencing
at the Northeast Corner of Section 18, T3S, R1E; thence N88°47’05”W, 888.10 feet
along the North line of said Section 18 to the centerline of Flansburg Road; thence
S37°38’22"W, 188.88 feet along said centerline to the point of beginning of the follow-
ing described parcel; thence S89°47’05”E, 369.28 feet; thence S00°12’55”W, 672.73
feet to the Northeasterly right-of way line of a former railroad; thence S53° T5’32”W,
100.00 feet (recorded as S53°23’27”W) to the Southwesterly right-of way line of a
former railroad; thence Northwesterly, 147.54 feet along said former right-of-way
line along the arc of a curve to the left, said curve having a radius of 5570.82 feet,
a delta angle of 1°31’03”, and a chord bearing N37°29’59”W, 147.54 feet; thence
SSCTOCMT’W, 408.91 feet (recorded as S79e47’46”W, 406.11 feet) to the centerline of
East South Street; thence N08°48’50”W, 354.56 feet along said centerline to the cen-
terline of Flansburg Road; thence N37°38’22”E 164.32 feet (recorded as N37°25’59”E,
163.92 feet) along said centerline to the Southwesterly right-of way line of a former
railroad; thence Southeasterly, 33.38 feet along said former right-of-way line along the
arc of a curve to the right, said curve having a radius of 5570.82 feet, a delta angle of
0°20’36”, and a chord bearing S43°40’30"E, 33.38 feet;.thence N37°38’22”E, 101.19
feet (recorded as N37°46’17”E, 101.18 feet to the Northeasterly right-of way line of a
former railroad; thence Northwesterly, 33.37 feet along said former right-of-way line
along the arc of a curve to the left, said curve having a radius of 5670.82 feet, a delta
angle of 0°20’14”, and a chord bearing N43°49’45”W, 33.37 feet to the centerline of
Flansburg Road; thence N37°38’22”E, 160.71 feet along said centerline to the point
of beginning; said parcel contains 8.29 acres, more or less; said parcel being subject
to the rights of the public over and across that portion currently being used for road
purposes; said parcel being subject to any easements or restrictions of use or record.

S & Antenna Service-
PP’S TV. ANTENNA, T.V.,
jillance, home theatre. Satel-
ales and Service. Brooklyn,
592-2680

Firewood
' FIREWbOD FOR SALE: $55.

delivered. 517-563-0618

EONI TOWNSHIP NOTICE
le Leoni Township Planning Commission will hold a
jblic Hearing Wednesday, May 15, 2019 @ -6:30 p.m. in
e Leoni Township meeting hall, 913 Fifth St., Michigan
enter, Michigan,
To add Sport Shooting ranges to Agricultural Zoning as

onditional Use
To add Sport Shooting ranges to B4 Zoning as Condi-

)nal Use
To add "any use not otherwise provided for" in the zoning

dinance to Heavy Industrial as Conditional Use.
To prohibit future Medical Marihuana grow and process-

g facilities in AG Zones, with exception to the currently
cisting local licensees that will be permitted to operate,
jmmence operations and/or expand on any real estate
operty zoned AG on the effective date of the legislation.
To amend tfie Agricultural Zoning Ordinance to include

> a Conditional Use “Agritourism"
erry Pickett, Clerk

VENDORS WANTED: Wat-
son Diesel Michigan Nationals
Truck & Tractor Pulls is looking
for vendors for Friday, June 21
from 3pm-10pm and Saturday,
June 22 from 10am-10pm. Call
Karie at 517-435-4967 or email
sales@watsondieselservice.
com for more information.' Event
will be held at the Calhoun
County Fairgrounds in Marshall,
Michigan.

NOTICE: PERSONAL CLASSI-
FIEDS are placed on a cash only
basis. Ads may be phoned in with
payment, sent promptly. There is
a $2 fee if billings are sent. THE ;

SALESMAN, 517-524-8540 517- [
783-4080

EIGHT VERY EXPENSIVE BAS-
KETS stolen from my green
house.'Please return them and no j
penalty will occur. HAVE CAMER-
AS IN THE GREENHOUSE. Not
opening this year due to illness. Be
back for you all next year, 2020.
Sharon Clark, Rose of Sharon
Country Gardens.

Sandstone Charter Township
LEAN UP DAY

ssidents of Sandstone Charter Township will be able to
ace items into garbage trucks that will be parked at the
>wnship Hall, 7940 County Farm Rd. on

May 4th, 2019 from 9am until 1pm
ie following items will be accepted from Sandstone
larter Township residents:

-Boats & Marine-
OUTBOARD MOTOR, 1989 20hp
Evinrude, electric start. Complete
controls for pontoon. Lots of ex-
tras. 517-524-8101

12 FT. ROWBOAT with trailer,
oars, anchors, new trolling mo- anrl

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 126 



  
www.region2planning.com/jackson-county-planning-commission 

 

Jackson County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 

COORDINATED ZONING REPORT | #19-16 

 To: County Planning Commissioners 
 From: Grant E. Bauman 
 Date: June 13, 2019 

 Proposal: ‘Marihuana Agriculture or Processing’ in Leoni Township’s Agricultural District 

The Request and Background Information 

The Leoni Township Planning Commission proposes an amendment to Chapter 42 (Zoning) of the Leoni 
Township Code of Ordinances pertaining to the prohibition of Marihuana Agriculture or Processing in 
the Agricultural (AG) District. 

The proposed amendment reads as follows: 

Sec. 42-153. - Agricultural district (AG). 

. . . 

(b) Permitted uses. Permitted uses are as follows: 

(1) Agriculture and the usual agricultural buildings and structures, including processing of 
agricultural products but not including commercial slaughtering or marihuana agricul-
ture or processing. 

. . . 

The proposed amendment would: 

 Add Marihuana Agriculture or Processing to the listing of agricultural uses excluded from the 
AG District. 

The Leoni Township Planning Commission passed a motion on 5/15/19 to: . . .amend the agenda as fol-
lows: Under New business #2 wording from "Sport Shooting Ranges” change to "Indoor Sport Shooting 
Ranges" which would be B4 Zoning also, new business #4 from “any” real estate property zoned AG to 
“its existing” real estate property zoned AG. 

The Leoni Township Planning Commission also passed a motion on 5/15/19 to: . . . amend zoning ordi-
nance to prohibit future MM grow & processing facilities in AG Zones, with exception to the currently ex-
isting local licensees that will be permitted to operate, commence operations and/or expand to its exist-
ing real estate property zoned AG on the effective date of the legislation. 

Staff Analysis 

 The motion passed by the Leoni Township Planning Commission prohibiting marihuana agricul-
ture or processing in the AG District, included an exception for “currently existing local licen-
sees that will be permitted to operate, commence operations and/or expand to its existing real 

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 127 



CZC #19-16 Page 2 
 

estate property zoned AG on the effective date of the legislation”. However, this conflicts with 
Sec. 42-347(b)(1) of the zoning code which states: 

Enlargement, expansion or extension of use. No such nonconforming use of land shall be 
enlarged, expanded, or extended to occupy a greater area of land than was occupied on 
the effective date of the ordinance from which this chapter is derived or the date of 
adoption of an amendment to this chapter, and no accessory use or structure shall be 
established therewith. 

Staff Advisement – Based upon this analysis, staff advises the Jackson County Planning Commission to 
recommend APPROVAL WITH COMMENTS of the amendments regarding the prohibition of Marihuana 
Agriculture or Processing in the Agricultural (AG) District to the Leoni Township Board: 

 The proposed exception— “currently existing local licensees 
that will be permitted to operate, commence operations 
and/or expand to its existing real estate property zoned AG 
on the effective date of the legislation” —conflicts with Sec. 
42-347(b)(1) of the zoning code. 

Staff Report Attachment(s): 

 Background information provided by Leoni Township 

Suggested Actions: 

(1) Recommend APPROVAL 
(2) Recommend DISAPPROVAL 
(3) Recommend APPROVAL 

WITH COMMENTS 
(4) Take NO ACTION 

6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 128 



6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 129 



6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 130 



6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 131 



6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 132 



6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 133 



6/13/19 JCPC Agenda  Packet Page 134 


	txtTownship9: Summit
	txtTownshipCaseNumber1: 19-05-0007
	txtTownshipContact2: John Worden
	txtTownshipPhoneArea4: 517
	txtTownshipPhone35: 788
	txtTownshipPhone43: 4113
	txtApplicant0: Linda S. Hones
	txtApplicantPhoneArea6: 239
	txtApplicantPhone37: 222
	txtApplicantPhone48: 2545
	txtRezoningFrom11: Agricultural
	txtRezoningFromParentheses42: AG-1
	txtRezoningTo10: Suburbam Residential
	txtRezoningToParentheses12: RS-2
	txtPropertyLocation36: 20
	chkbxQuarterSectionNW16: NW
	chkbxQuarterSectionNE13: Off
	chkbxQuarterSectionSW14: Off
	chkbxQuarterSectionSE15: Off
	chkbxLegalDescription17: Yes
	txtParcel33: see attached
	Text1Filler34: 
	chkbxMap18: Yes
	txtExisitingUse35: Vacant Land
	txtUseProposed54: 5- Single Family Homes
	txtUseNorth40: Vacant
	txtUseSouth38: Vacant
	txtUseEast37: Residential
	txtUseWest39: Residential and Vacant
	txtNorthZoningDistrict43: Suburban Residential
	txtZoningNorthParentheses45: RS-2
	txtSouthZoningDistrict44: Agricultural
	txtZoningSouthParentheses47: AG-1
	txtEastZoningDistrict41: Suburban Residential
	txtZoningEastParentheses46: RS-2
	txtWestZoningDistrict48: Agricultural
	txtZoningWestParentheses50: AG-1
	txtTownshipLandUsePlan49: Low Density Residential
	chkbxMunicipalWater19: Yes
	chkbxMunicipalWaterAvailable23: Off
	txtMunicipalWaterWhen51: 
	chkbxMunicipalSewer20: Yes
	chkbxMunicipalSewerAvailable24: Off
	txtMunicipalSewerWhen52: 
	chkbxPublicStreetAccess21: Yes
	txtPublicStreetName53: Ridgeway Rd.
	chkbxEnvironmentalConstraints22: No
	chkboxEnvironmentalConstraints28: Off
	chkboxEnvironmentalConstraintsFp25: Off
	chkboxEnvironmentalConstraintsBr26: Off
	chkboxEnvironmentalConstraintsSoils27: Off
	chkboxEnvironmentalConstraintsOther29: Off
	txtOtherSpecified55: 
	chkbxMinutesAttached30: Yes
	chkbxReportsAttached31: Yes
	chkbxPublicCommentAttached32: Yes
	chkbxPublicCommentAttached: Yes
	chkbxReportsAttached: Yes
	chkbxMinutesAttached: Yes
	txtOtherSpecified: 
	chkboxEnvironmentalConstraintsOther: Off
	Text1Filler: 
	chkboxEnvironmentalConstraintsSoils: Off
	chkboxEnvironmentalConstraintsBr: Off
	chkboxEnvironmentalConstraintsFp: Off
	chkboxEnvironmentalConstraints: Off
	chkbxEnvironmentalConstraints: No
	txtPublicStreetName: Ridgeway Rd.
	chkbxPublicStreetAccess: Yes
	txtMunicipalSewerWhen: 
	chkbxMunicipalSewerAvailable: Off
	chkbxMunicipalSewer: Yes
	txtMunicipalWaterWhen: 
	chkbxMunicipalWaterAvailable: Off
	chkbxMunicipalWater: Yes
	txtTownshipLandUsePlan: Low Density Residential
	txtZoningWestParentheses: AG-1
	txtWestZoningDistrict: Agricultural
	txtZoningEastParentheses: RS-2
	txtEastZoningDistrict: Suburban Residential
	txtZoningSouthParentheses: AG-1
	txtSouthZoningDistrict: Agricultural
	txtZoningNorthParentheses: RS-2
	txtNorthZoningDistrict: Suburban Residential
	txtUseWest: Residential and Vacant
	txtUseEast: Residential
	txtUseSouth: Vacant
	txtUseNorth: Vacant
	txtUseProposed: 5- Single Family Homes
	txtExisitingUse: Vacant Land
	chkbxMap: Yes
	txtParcel: see attached
	chkbxLegalDescription: Yes
	chkbxQuarterSectionSE: Off
	chkbxQuarterSectionSW: Off
	chkbxQuarterSectionNE: Off
	chkbxQuarterSectionNW: NW
	txtPropertyLocation: 20
	txtRezoningToParentheses: RS-2
	txtRezoningTo: Suburbam Residential
	txtRezoningFromParentheses: AG-1
	txtRezoningFrom: Agricultural
	txtApplicantPhone4: 2545
	txtApplicantPhone3: 222
	txtApplicantPhoneArea: 239
	txtApplicant: Linda S. Hones
	txtTownshipPhone4: 4113
	txtTownshipPhone3: 788
	txtTownshipPhoneArea: 517
	txtTownshipContact: John Worden
	txtTownshipCaseNumber: 19-05-0007
	txtTownship: Summit


